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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overall Performance

During the year under review, the Group generated revenue of approximately HK$12.8
million (2016: approximately HK$12.0 million), with a loss for the year of approximately
HK$4.8 million (2016: profit of approximately HK$8.4 million). As disclosed in the annual
report for the previous year, there was a one-time net gain during such previous year
upon the disposal of subsidiaries; excluding such one-time net gain, the loss for such
previous year as disclosed in such annual report would have been approximately HK$19.4
million. The decrease in loss for the year under review as compared with the loss during
the previous year (excluding such one-time net gain) was mainly due to net realised/
unrealised gain in our Securities business segment and unrealised fair value gain in our
Property business segment of approximately HK$5.4 million and approximately HK$6.6
million, respectively.

Our Securities business has been continuing to achieve risk-adjusted returns under
relatively volatile conditions in the global capital markets. Our Financial Services business
has been contributing a steady increase in its revenue from our money lending customers
base during this year. Our Property business has seen an increase in unrealised fair value
gain due to capital value appreciation. Our Food & Beverage business has been exploring
different investment opportunities in this sector, by focusing on smaller-scale operations,
and casual food & beverage and related businesses. Our Technology & Media business
made an investment in a financial technology business, as announced in the Company’s
announcement of 26 September 2016, and has been continuing to identify different
potential business or investment opportunities in Hong Kong and internationally to
diversify income sources in this sector.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Financial Services

Our financial services business recorded a business segment profit for the year of
approximately HK$1.6 million (2016: approximately HK$1.2 million).

Securities

Our securities business recorded a net realised and unrealised gain on trading of
securities investment and dividend income in equity investments in aggregate of
approximately HK$5.6 million (2016: loss of approximately HK$11.7 million), which
contributed a gain for our securities segment of approximately HK$5.6 million (2016: loss
of approximately HK$11.8 million) for the year ended 30 April 2017.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property business segment was approximately HK$4.6 million
(2016: approximately HK$5.9 million). The business segment contributed a profit of
approximately HK$10.4 million (2016: approximately HK$6.6 million) to the Group.
Excluding the gain on unrealised fair value, the recurring profit of the Property business
segment would have been approximately HK$3.8 million (2016: approximately HK$5.1
million).

Technology & Media

Our technology & media business recorded a business segment loss for the year of
approximately HK$5.2 million (2016: approximately HK$2.3 million).

Food & Beverage

During the year, revenue for our food & beverage business was approximately
HK$0.2 million (2016: approximately HK$0.1 million), resulting in a segment gain of
approximately HK$0.1 million (2016: approximately HK$ nil).
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the risk of negative, volatile or of uncertain developments,
including but not limited to negative, volatile or uncertain developments in the global,
regional and local economies, in the financial and property markets, and in the changes
in patterns of consumption. These developments might reduce revenue or result in
reduced valuations of the Group’s investment properties or in the Group being unable
to meet its strategic objectives or in negative effect to its financial condition, results
of operations and businesses. The Company will continue to adopt prudent financial
policies to cope with the impact of uncertain factors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and bank balances as at 30 April 2017 amounting to
approximately HK$36.7 million (2016: approximately HK$72.4 million). The Group’s
current ratio as at 30 April 2017 was 3.5 (2016: 3.8). The total equity of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$341.8 million (2016: approximately HK$310.0 million) as
at 30 April 2017.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.09 as at 30 April
2017 (2016: 0.10).

Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group’s assets, liabilities and cash flow from operations are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does not
have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the Company monitors its foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedges should the need arise.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated resources and
bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowing, if applicable, are generally charged by
reference to prevailing market rates.

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2016: nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group expects the global and local business environment to remain uncertain
in the coming year. In addition to our core businesses, we intend to actively explore
other potential investment opportunities to maximise shareholders’ value and diversify
business risk.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had 14 (2016: 16) employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices. Its staff benefits, welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if
any, are made in accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of
its operating entities.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EEET

Executive Directors

Vong Tat leong David, aged 55, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and
serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Vong has acquired and run
public companies, and made and advised on cross-border financial transactions and
mergers and acquisitions, involving capital markets and private equity, for over 25 years.
He was formerly Vice Chairman of the board of directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was director
and Deputy Chief Executive of 1100 Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
since he co-founded the i100 Group in 2000 with an international consortium whose key
participants included management and leading institutional investors. Prior to that, he
was Chief Executive at Pollon Infrastructure Corporation, an infrastructure investment
holding company focused on power and telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is
a graduate of Yale Law School and The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Xu Siping, aged 59, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and held a series
of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRCs State Economic and Trade
Commission and the National Development and Reform Commission (formerly the State
Planning Commission), from 1983-2000, before retiring from public service in the central
government. Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fung Ka Keung David, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2005, is Assistant Vice President at Golden Concord Holdings Limited.
He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Lam Lee G., aged 58, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2005. He holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in systems science and
an MBA from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in public
administration from Carleton University in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in English
and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester Metropolitan University
in the UK, a LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in law
from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong
Kong. A former member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a Solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow of CPA Australia and a Fellow of CMA Australia.

Dr Lam has international experience in general management, strategy consulting,
corporate governance, direct investment, investment banking and fund management
across the telecommunications/media/technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare,
infrastructure/real estates, energy/resources and financial services sectors. He is Non-
Executive Chairman — Hong Kong and ASEAN Region and Chief Adviser to Macquarie
Infrastructure and Real Assets Asia. Active in community service in China and Hong Kong
and in international affairs, Dr. Lam served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy
Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms, a
Member of the Legal Aid Services Council, a Member of the New Business Committee of
the Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), a Member of the Derivatives Market
Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX) and a Member
of the General Council and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is currently Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, a member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government’s Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-Industrialization,
the Council on Professional Conduct in Education (CPC), Vice Chairman of the United
Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP) Business
Advisory Council and Chairman of its Task Force on Banking and Finance, Chairman of
the Permanent Commission on Economic and Financial Issues of World Union of Small
and Medium Enterprises (WUSME), Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, a
Member of the Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a Specially-invited Member of the
Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCQ), a Vice Chairman of Liaoning Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for
Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Member of the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong, a Member of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a Founding Member
of the Hong Kong-Korea Business Council, a Board Member of the Australian Chamber
of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, a Founding Board Member and the Honorary
Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, a Vice President of the
Hong Kong Real Property Federation, Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong and President of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation. He is Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

Wong Man Ngar Edna, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at UBM Asia, a director of Xact Limited,
and was formerly Regional Marketing Manager at American Express, and Management
Consultant at The Mitchell Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia
Business School and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial statements
of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
30 April 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities businesses, property
businesses, technology & media businesses and food & beverage businesses.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars of important events
affecting the Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for the year
ended 30 April 2017 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 25 of this annual
report. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend payment of any
dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on page 83.

Donations

No donations was made by the Group during the year (2016: HK$30,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s properties are set out on page 84.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 April 2017.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 27 and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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ExgRE

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$322.2 million. This includes the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of approximately HK$619.3 million as at 30 April 2017, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Company’s capital
redemption reserve in the amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company did not take out insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors because it is believed that this legal risk to
the Directors is quite low.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year. Purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the
year.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers and suppliers.

Commitments

The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2016: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Vong Tat leong David
Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:

Fung Ka Keung David
Lam Lee G.
Wong Man Ngar Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Vong Tat leong
David and Lam Lee G. will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Vong Tat leong David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until
terminated by mutual consent.

Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group commencing on
3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual
consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 30 April 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Appropriate
percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
ExpR 514 R ER BRERESL
Vong Tat leong David Held through a controlled corporation 99,050,000 ordinary 51.54%

"iED BRI HIRERA

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2017, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them or
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 30 April 2017, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Name of shareholders

Interest in shares

EEBAROIES ZEF

BriRa B IS MR M E30IR B 2 AR BIPT IR £ SN AR
ARAEERAERR TENESHRES B 2B BIARKF
FRAEM NEBRBARBBMRES 2 N EEN &
HIEETEITE AR ZEREAN AR A s EAERZERA
A BRI RFRNME R RN E AR L P e EEEL
EMEMEABRRRESZSER -

EERRRRGO RAARERGD 2 #ES

RZZE—EFEA=ZFRA THAL(EEREARAEET
KA BEBRIN) AR AR SARBE A0 AR I B LSRR IR 8 55
KRB EPIEBKARARAETREZECMA 2L -

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share capital

EARRARERT
RERERE RER RA&AZBEDL
Vongroup Holdings Limited 99,050,000 51.54%
Claman Global Limited 23,349,436 12.15%
Share Option Scheme MR RS E

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011 (the “New
Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the Company, at their discretion,
may grant options to Directors, officers and employees (whether full time or part-time)
of the Company or a subsidiary and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers,
sub-contractors or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. No
share options were outstanding nor granted during the year ended 30 April 2017.

Employment and Emolument Policies

As 30 April 2017, the Group had 14 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
market rates, workload and responsibilities and general economic situation. The Group’s
employee benefits include performance bonus, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong
employees and social insurance packages for the PRC employees.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year ended 30 April
2017, which also constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (‘CG Code) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2015
have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30 April
2016 and 2017 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who was first
appointed by the Directors as the auditors of the Company for the year ended 30 April
2016 and will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Vong Tat leong David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 July 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the quality of corporate
governance so to ensure better transparency of the Company, protection of shareholders’
and stakeholders’ rights and enhance shareholder value.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
(G Code and periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code, except for the deviation from code
provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
should be performed by different individuals. Since September 2005, Vong Tat leong
David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out the responsibilities
of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present structure is more
suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow
for more efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years as specified in the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There are
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company; they were unable to attend
the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 September 2016 due to
their engagement with their other commitments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 April 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 30 April 2017, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five members: two
executive Directors, namely Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) and Xu Siping;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Fung Ka Keung David, who has
the professional and accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Lam Lee G.
and Wong Man Ngar Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on page 6 of this annual
report.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 6 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2017 and additional
Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors who cannot attend in
person might participate through other electronic means of communications. Due notice
and relevant materials for the meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:
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Members of the Board Attended/Held
VONG Tat leong David 6/6
XU Siping 5/6
FUNG Ka Keung David 6/6
LAM Lee G. 6/6
WONG Man Ngar Edna 6/6

Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business development.
The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues and valuate the financial
performance of the Group. The Board will consider and approve acquisition and disposal,
remuneration policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, connected transactions,
placing and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company is elected at
each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the Company is delegated to
the CEO and the management of the Company.

Induction and Continuing Development For Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training programmes at
the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Vong Tat leong David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out
the responsibilities of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present
structure is more suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent
leadership and allow for more efficient formulation and implementation of the
Company’s development strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes, including the separation of the
roles of Chairman and CEO, are necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, and the terms of their appointment will be reviewed when they are due
for re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, currently, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Fung Ka Keung
David and Wong Man Ngar Edna. The Audit Committee members performed their duties
within written terms of reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships between the
Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of non-audit services),
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, any issues arising from
the audit and any other auditors may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal
control and risk management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements for the
year ended 30 April 2016 and for the six months ended 31 October 2016, considered
and approved the audit work of the auditors and reviewed the business and financial
performance of the Company and the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2017 have been reviewed by the
Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Fung Ka Keung
David, and one executive Director, Vong Tat leong David. The Remuneration Committee
members performed their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The principle role of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and
approved the remuneration of the Directors. No executive Director has taken part in any
discussion about his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration of Directors according to their respective responsibilities, expertise and
performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G. and Fung Ka Keung David and one executive Director, Vong Tat
leong David (Chairman of the Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee
members performed their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Company and CEO.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance rate of
100%.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Audit Committee is responsible to help the Board for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

* to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board;

* to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management;

* to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with all legal
and regulatory requirements;

* to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

* to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The amount of audit fee payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited for the year
ended 30 April 2017 was HK$500,000.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing consolidated financial
statements for the financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group’s results and its cash flows.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report to
this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Tsui Siu Hung Raymond, the secretary of the Company, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 30
April 2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“‘EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles 58 of the Articles of the Company, an EGM can be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

3) Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send requisitions and requests to the Board or the secretary of the
Company in written form to the principal place of business of the Company at 17A,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 April 2017, there was no change to the articles of association
of the Company. The Company has posted its articles of association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and with the support of the
Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The
Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present this report in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 and
the requirements set out in Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules. The report describes the
Company’s policies that were designed to fulfill the Company’s obligations with respect
to sustainable development and social responsibilities areas, as required by the ESG
Guide. This report covers the operational information, which includes data and activities
of the Group’s head offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, and its reporting period covers
the period from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017. The Group will illustrate and highlight
its efforts and performance in both environmental and social aspects for the Group’s
business operations in this report. In respect of the corporate governance practices of
the Company, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual
report.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Overview

We know that the quality of environmental protection procedures is very important
to achievement of long-term success of our Company. Our priority is to protect the
environment and our target is to minimise adverse impact on the environment by
adopting world class environmental protection practices in our operational activities.

We do our best to ensure that the concept of environmental sustainability is
integrated into every part of our daily business operations.

We keep on monitoring all types of changes in the ways of producing waste and/
or utilising energy during the process of carrying on our business activities with the
aim of mitigating any unfavourable impact of our operations on the environment.
We continually review and update our ESG policies, if applicable, to ensure that
there is a balance between sustainable corporate development and environmental
protection.

It is often our great desire to minimise the negative impact of our operational
activities on the environment by improving energy efficiency, reducing all kinds of
waste and supporting education as to environmental protection.

Emissions

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. It actively
implements multiple measures for environmental protection in its operations and
formulates various management policies to reduce emissions.

While the main business of the Group is not production, its operations do not impose
much impact on water, land or air by way of greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and/or generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
We do not produce any hazardous waste and we strive to minimise volume of non-
hazardous waste that we produce during the course of our daily operations. Our
greenhouse gases emissions are indirectly, principally resulting from electricity
consumed at the Company’s workplace as well as from business travel by employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not generate any significant hazardous
waste during its operations. Therefore, no relevant internal regulations have been
formulated.

Use of resources

The Group encourages the reduction of energy consumption. Energy saving light
bulbs and LED lighting systems are used in all offices of the Group. The Group
encourages making use of natural daylight and refrain from turning on unnecessary
lights during daytime. Meanwhile, rules on energy saving are implemented to ensure
that all equipment and lights of conference rooms are turned off when they are not
in use. Equipment and office machinery including but not limited to computers,
printers and photocopiers are to be switched to sleep mode immediately after use.
Employees are required to turn off lights and computers before leaving the office.
Energy saving devices are installed to reduce consumption of electricity and water
after office hours.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

(B

Use of resources (Continued)

We try our best to avoid unnecessary wastage of paper and promote effective
usage of paper. In our daily operations, we maximise usage of e-versions instead of
hardcopies wherever it is possible. We encourage our staff to work more effectively
in a paperless environment. In case there is still a need for printing, we make use
of double-sided printing generally, and reuse the recycled paper with one side of it
already used for those documents used internally.

Meanwhile, the Group also adopts policy to reduce the use of disposable
consumables, such as disposable cutlery and plastic bottled water. Measures to
promote separation of waste for reuse and recycle are in place pursuant to which
certain consumables of photocopiers and printers such as cartridges and toners,
waste paper that cannot be reused and discarded computers are to be separated
from other daily solid waste for recycling.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment

As at 30 April 2017, the total number of employees being employed by the Group
was 14 (2016: 16). The Group understands that human resource is one of its most
valuable assets, the provision of a stimulating and harmonious working environment
can improve the sense of belongings to its employees. Employees and Directors
are remunerated based on their educational qualifications, industry experience,
performance, current industry practices and prevailing market conditions and
in accordance with pertinent labour laws and regulations. Apart from the basic
package, for instance, severance payment, mandatory provident fund, employment
compensation insurance, annual leaves, sick leaves, additional remuneration and
benefits such as performance-based bonuses and other staff welfare benefits are
provided.

Health and Safety

Our Company complies with the relevant laws and regulations regarding industrial
safety, hygiene and health and other caring arrangements for employees. The
Company’s business operations do not involve any high-risk work activities that
could lead to serious industrial events or occupational health problems. We care
about our staff members’ health and safety. In this respect, the Company provides
relevant updates of occupational safety and health to its employees by means of
leaflets and training courses which are conducted by the Labour Department. During
the year, there was no case of injuries reported.

Development and Training

The Group encourages lifelong learning and offer trainings to its employees to
enhance their performance and to provide support to their personal development.
The objective of the Group’s human resource management is to reward and
recognise performing staff by a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, salaries and wages are reviewed annually based on
performance appraisals, qualifications, experience, position and seniority.

Labour Standard

The Group’s recruitment management system measures clearly on the staff’s age
requirement. Review and verification of applicant’s identity information is required
during the recruitment process, and recruitment of child labor is strictly prohibited.
Applicant is also required to provide document proofs of academic qualifications
and working experience for verifications, applicant who is suspected to have false
academic qualifications and working experience will not be employed. The Group
provides its staff with a safe, health, comfortable working environment with
labor protection, reasonable remuneration and various welfare. The Group enters
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and has strictly complied with such laws
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
(B) SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Supply Chain Management

It is the Group’s policy to undertake procurement so as to advance our economic,
environmental and social objectives. New suppliers will be assessed and their
products will be evaluated before engagement. Preference will be given to socially
responsible entities, energy efficient equipment and environmental friendly
products. Ongoing quality monitoring and supervision is in place to ensure
procurements are conducted specific to the Group’s requirement.

Product responsibility

The quality of the product is very important to the Group. The Group has establishes
various communication channels including company’s website, e-mail and telephone
for customers to give their feedback to the Group. Customer’s satisfaction will
become the driving force for the Group to increase the quality of the product. Also,
the Group respects the privacy of the customer, protecting customer’s and supplier’s
data and privacy of client information. They are kept in confidentiality and destroyed
in accordance with the Group’s policy on document retention.

Anti-corruption and Anti-Fraud

The Company maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery in any form. We encourage the
reporting of suspected business irregularities and provide clear channels specifically
for this purpose. When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of
duty, abuse of power, receiving bribes, staff should report for investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator and/or to law enforcement authority when
necessary.

Community Investment

Although the Group was not involved in charity or community events during
the reporting period, it is committed to conducting business without making
any potential environmental and social impact to its stakeholders especially
its employees and the community members. The Company often explores the
opportunities of incorporating environmental and social elements into its
investment decisions and operational management, with reference to best practices
in the industry and internationally recognised ESG standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYRHERE

BT st FH TR R D
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
25 to 82, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 April
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI ETNMEEREESE

Fair value of investment properties

BRENMEZDFE

Refer to Note 2 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
F2RGE M BHRERMFE2R16

The Group’s investment properties were carried at their estimated fair
values of approximately HK$193,939,000 as at 30 April 2017, with fair
value gain of approximately HK$6,620,000 for the year ended 30 April
2017 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

RZZE—tFHWA=+H SEENREMERGTAFED
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Management has estimated the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties based on independent external valuations. These
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that required
significant management judgment, including market unit value of
comparable properties, premium or discount adjustments to these
market values for factors specific to the characteristics of the Group’s
properties compared to recent sales on the comparable transactions
and assuming the properties are capable of being sold in existing
status. Accordingly, we have identified the estimation of fair values of
the investment properties as a key audit matter.
ERENENBINMEERS BEREREMENDTE %
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hEMENTISENEE HE SEEMERHEEOEESH
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Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s estimation of the valuation
of investment properties included:

B ERBHREMEZ BEGRINE EF 25

*  Evaluating the independent valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o AHMEENEER TR B REFEIE

* Assessing the valuation methodologies used and the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuations, based on our
knowledge of the relevant industry and using our own valuation specialist to
assist us in our audit;

o BREEMEBEETENTRUEDRMESNHESR DR METE
& AHEEEMEANGEETEZREEBRZEE RSB

*  Checking, on sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the other input data
used where available.

o TEIRE AT B ABUR (05 ) B AERE 1 AR -

We found the fair values of the investment properties were supported by the
available evidence.

HPER REMEN A FEGRESS -

Impairment review of accounts receivable, loans and advances to money lending customers and other receivables

YRR  ARERFERRBRR E b ERERR R ARG

Refer to Note 2, 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

BLHRA T EREMNTE2 - 21 - 22K23 ©

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had accounts receivable of
approximately HK$4,050,000, loans and advances to money lending
customers of approximately HK$15,664,000 and other receivables of
approximately HK$21,429,000.

RZE—+FMA=+H" - &EEHEEWKER4050,000%
TC MRUE R P B R B 5R 4915,664,00078 7T K H {th fE U RIE 4
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Management judgment is required in assessing and determining the
recoverable amounts of these accounts receivable, loan and advance
to money lending customers and other receivables.

Sl K T R R - M ER P B R B N B At MR IR Y
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The judgment mainly include estimating and evaluating expected
future receipts from customers or debtors based on past payment
trend, age of the balances and other available information
concerning the credit worthless of counterparties.
HEFEZREREBEMNNBEY R REHREF I EENHEM
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Accordingly, we have identified the impairment assessment of these
balances as a key audit matter.

Eitt - HABEZERBEOREFER AR RAERETER-

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment review of these receivables
included:

P RAFRRE E R ETEF 2

»  Discussing with management concerning the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit/loan periods to customers.

- HEBENR BREARRTEFNEERBEREER BERHNEF -

* Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment including testing
on a sample basis, the underlying data used by management to assess the
collectability of those receivables.

o AMAERERREN G SEmENRE R B RMAMNMEEEIE - U
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* Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of information
included in the impairment assessment of those receivables, where available.

© MEREZSRUGRIEREF G EENEN(NE ) 0 EE 1L AR -

*  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions made by the management
in arriving at their estimates of future receipts from the customers/debtors,
based on our knowledge of the relevant industries.

o REBERMEMEETEN TEHR SEEEBEGITARNER BB AKE
FIEREH R AR R

We found the management’s impairment assessment of the receivables supported

by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRES SR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERWETNMEERRENSE

Carrying amount of available-for-sale investments and related issue

AHHEREZREAEREESEE

Refer to Notes 2 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERA M IS mERM 219

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had available-for-sale investments
of carrying amount of approximately HK$ 48,499,000, which is
significant to the Group’s total assets. These available-for-sale
investments comprise mainly of unquoted equity securities stated at
cost less impairment, if any. No impairment loss was recognised for
the year ended 30 April 2017.
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Exercise of significant judgment is required to be made by
management when determining whether an objective evidence of
impairment loss existed for any of these equity investments as at 30
April 2017. In making this judgment, historical data and information
gathered from analyses of industry and sector performance, as
well as financial information regarding the investees and certain
specific conditions surrounding the transactions giving rise to
the investments, have to be analysed and taken into account by
management in the impairment assessment process.
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In addition, the available-for-sale investments of the Group included
investment in Claman Global Limited (“Claman”) of approximately
HK$38,293,000 as at 30 April 2017. The subscription agreement
for the Group’s investment in Claman contains a clause for the
adjustment to the subscription price if the audited consolidated net
profit of Claman for the first full financial year after the closing date
is less than HK$10,000,000, the directors considered that the profit
would be achieved and no contingent consideration receivable was
recognised as at 30 April 2017.

N RZFE—tFOA=1+H - E&ENAIHEEHRESRE
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Management judgment is required in assessing that it is highly
unlikely for the adjustment to the purchase consideration to
eventually take place. In making this judgment, the management
obtained and assessed the financial budgets in respect of Claman,
which were prepared based on certain key assumptions. The
assessment of the appropriateness and reasonableness of these key
assumptions require exercise of significant judgment.

A RARKEEEERENARER N EREEEEELA
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In view of the significant judgments involved, we have identified
the impairment assessment of available for sale investments and
the estimation of carrying amount of the contingent consideration
relating to Claman as key audit matter.

ERW RO EBRAE B HEERENRBENERE
Clamanf) S AR BIREE AR AR ST FE -

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment review of available-for-sale
investments and the estimation of contingent consideration receivable include the
following:
W;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ’%&ﬁE’\Jﬁ@%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ‘%ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁt‘éﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁE’U%Eﬁ%%@%u
THE :

* evaluating the appropriateness and reasonableness of the methodologies and
key assumptions used in the impairment assessment and estimation of the
fair value of contingent consideration receivable processes as adopted by the
management.

o FHMERERL RERERANEESAREB A T EMREMEANTT
ERBRESRN AT IEREERNY

* obtaining from management of the Group and assessing available financial
information of investees.

« ft BESRETEERSILMERIREATNMBER -

+ obtaining and checking to the documentary evidence to support the
Company’s assessments, assumptions and estimations, where available.

« ERYReEXE BEARRME  REREFRXEER(IE)-

We found the impairment review of available-for-sale investments and estimation
of contingent consideration receivable supported by the available evidence.

BAER  AHREERENRER G RERSARENEAERS-



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

A EEARAT FHR2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYRHERE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Ng
Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practicing Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 31 July 2017

RBMETGEMBERRNEET R

s HEZMARBBELESHELENEE M  R(ERAE
BREFER) RDFEASFIGRNARM A A 885
4 BERERBEEERNELERERNENTHEE M
SHER - MERMRREFEEATREN FTEEX
SRR E PRI RGA M MR AR B S (5%
BRETRERRMOER - HMNERERBEZEED
BEAHMERSNESER - AWM RREHIMAA

BREH BEEBEARERLE-

s FERAHMBREANEBEIIR ABLRAD BREEE
LiFa M BHRRRRERATIRO T R T8
RHREM -

e EHAM EEENERIEHLHNUBERNRD
HMENRFTEER WHEEWBERRERER - HMA
BiES EERETEEER -HMADAYRMANET

BERAERAEE

BRI (A el Rt RBERBRESEREAER
(BRBEMERAHEROANEFHENRRE) BEZLZEE
B e

BPTRERZEGRHE—MER XRAMCETHEE
THMERERER YA RS RHRMBLIEEL
SRENMAERER(MER BRREEEREREZESE
i o

REREZZEEBNER RMARLEHREERYES
FHMGE P BHRANE REENFIE - BB ARET
EE-BMERBAMRSTHBRZER BRIDERIER
ZIFRFAREZER L(EBRLBERT) BRETHRER
AEEMEEAAMBEMEROIANEG  ROABA/ZE
TR AFIROIRE PR o

RENBUZEMBENEETRRARE -

BEEtMEEMARIR
HEEFTED

AxRE
HEFBZRE © P06417

B —T—+tFtA=1+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEEREMEAKER

For the year ended 30 April 2017

BE-_Z—tHFMA=tTHLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
[iEzs FET T
Continuing operations: BERSEEL .
Revenue Wz 4 12,767 11,967
Other revenue H g e 6 1,078 850
Other gains Efb & F 6 - 350
Cost of inventories consumed KOERETFER A (64) (117)
Staff costs BIA (8,454) (7,082)
Operating lease rentals LERERS (579) (564)
Depreciation e (525) (534)
Other operating expenses HEg gL (15,084) (25,411)
Change in fair value of investment properties BEWEZ AT EE 16 6,620 1,525
Loss from operations ReEEE 7 (4,241) (19,016)
Finance costs B RS RN 8 (486) (461)
Loss before taxation FRBE AT 1R (4,727) (19,477)
Income tax g%t 9(a) (80) 87
Loss for the year from continuing operations FEEREREERER (4,807) (19,390)
Discontinued operation: BARIEREEL .
Profit for the year from discontinued operation IS B AR IS & SR s A 10 - 27,749
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the owners  ZARQFEE AELAEE (FE) ER
of the Company (4,807) 8,359
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AEEHMEE(ER) WA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or ~ EE A EFHHEEIERZER ¢
loss:
Exchange difference on translating of foreign WMEBINETS 2 [EH 2%
operations:
Exchange differences arising during the year FREEZERZ5 (1,648) (1,631)
Reclassification adjustment relating to foreign EHTANEEIINEBENSERE
operations disposed of during the year - 1,710
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, RNEEHMEE(EE) WA HBRFIE
net of tax (1,648) 79
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ARARFEEABGEERNZEER)WABE
attributable to the owners of the Company (6,455) 8,438
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (HK$) EREARBE(FE) BR(GER) 14
— From continuing and discontinued operations —BHECEEE BRI EEER (0.0264) 0.0535
— From continuing operations — BB R (0.0264) (0.1240)
— From discontinued operation — BRI EEK - 0.1775

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial — B&MIFIsFERK L FEA P BRER 2 —309 -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRR
AS AT 30 APRIL 2017
R-ZE-—tFMA=+A

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF T —RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 15 14,024 13,941
Investment properties SEYE 16 193,939 187,959
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and TEEVE BMEAIEINZES
equipment 18 367 367
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 19 48,499 2,452
256,829 204,719
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e~ 20 1,947 2,011
Forfeited collateral held for sale HFEELEARR 20 699 705
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 21 4,050 4,050
Loans and advances to money lending customers MRERFPER K ER 22 15,664 15,043
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BRI HAEKERR 23 38,912 32,772
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEFABGZ I EHFRE 24 21,483 16,201
Cash and bank balances R RIBITRH 25 36,676 72,389
119,431 143,171
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and deposits received Rt IERE WiRe 26 2,886 4,490
Bank borrowings RITIEE 27 30,140 32,076
Tax payables FERTTEIR 28 (a) 829 829
33,855 37,395
Net current assets RBEETFE 85,576 105,776
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 342,405 310,495
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIEAE 28 (b) 611 539
NET ASSETS EEFHE 341,794 309,956
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R #E
Share capital & s 29 7,688 6,754
Reserves & 31 334,106 303,202
TOTAL EQUITY BrEw 341,794 309,956
The consolidated financial statements from page 29 to 82 were approved and authorised — 4F& M EMEE29ENERETEN _—_E—+F+HA=+—

for issue by the board of directors on 31 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Vong Tat leong David
BEE
Director

BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

B R XML A T ESARES

Xu Siping
HRETF
Director

BE
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A BEEARAT FHR2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEERBBR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017

BE_Z-tFNA=THLEE

Capital Statutory Exchange
Share Share  redemption surplus  translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B EE
R E{E] B& ER 2%
BRA e R R 1] 3} act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FAET AT TET TET TR
At 1 May 2015 R-_E—RAFHA—H 5,860 533,020 262 270 2,513 (282,702) 259,223
Profit for the year REERH - - - - - 8,359 8,359
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEZERA(EE):
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified Higmge@EnEsEansE
subsequently to profit or loss: B
Exchange difference on BEGINEB BN ZR
translating of foreign
operations:
Exchange differences arising FREACVERZESR
during the year - - - - (1,631) - (1,631)
Reclassification adjustment FRNEBLEBIINEKZ
relating to foreign EMDEAE
operations disposed of
during the year - - - - 1,710 - 1,710
Total comprehensive income for the FREERABE
year - - - - 79 8,359 8,438
Issue of shares pursuant to placing of ~ RIERLER BN KRB K
existing shares and subscription for BT
new shares 894 42,096 - - - - 42,990
Transaction costs attributable to issue — IRIRACE IR A IR0 KRR
of shares pursuant to placing of BT 2 EIE R Z AR
existing shares and subscription for
new shares - (695) - - - - (695)
At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZE—R"EFMNA=+HAK=Z
—NFRA—H 6,754 574,421 262 270 2,592 (274,343) 309,956
Loss for the year REZEE - - - - - (4,807) (4,807)
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMEEEGE -
year:
Items that may be reclassified HgmgeEmnEEBa A
subsequently to profit or loss: H:
Exchange difference on BEGINER 2 ER Z5
translating of foreign
operations:
Exchange differences arising FREAVZELZS
during the year - - - - (1,648) - (1,648)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 HE B A - - - - (1,648) (4,807) (6,455)
Issue of shares BITRG 934 37,359 - - - - 38,293
At 30 April 2017 R=®B—tEmA=+H 7,688 611,780 262 270 944 (279,150) 341,794
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial — BEBMFIsEREA I SHEATBEHRER 2 —3D

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GRERLRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-ZE-—tFNA=THLEE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF T —RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before taxation including discontinued BIEDKRIEEEB ZRBA(EE), 55
operation (4,727) 8,272
Adjustments for: MR -
Bank interest income RITHBIA 6 (151) (136)
Finance costs AT RCAR 8 486 461
Dividend income on equity investments BHRE ZREWA 4 (265) (593)
Other interest income EHAbFBHA 6 (750) (584)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% B R ETE 15 525 534
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z s 10 - (27,749)
Net (gain)/loss on equity investments at fair value BAFEFABSZESFREZ (W) B
through profit or loss B8 4 (5,368) 12,268
Change in fair value of investment properties BEMEZ N EE 16 (6,620) (1,525)
Operating cash flows before movements in working EEESHBAZ2RKERSHKE
capital (16,870) (9,052)
Decrease in inventories FERL 64 117
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale FERLUHEIR @IG (42) (56)
Increase in accounts receivable JE U BR SR8 0 - (8,550)
Increase in loans and advances to money lending MREEEER LB FIE M
customers (646) (6,693)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other e AR R E A FEULBR ZIE A0
receivables (13,251) (2,744)
Decrease in equity investments at fair value through BRATFESFABRZEFRERD
profit or loss 86 2,655
Decrease in deposits placed with financial institutions & BT O - 1,495
Decrease in accruals and deposits received FEETFRIEREKIZES R D (1,635) (67)
Cash used in operations EEMARS (32,294) (22,895)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EMER 28 (a) (8) (60)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBERMAZESFE (32,302) (22,955)
Investing activities REEH
Bank interest received EERTTF B 6 151 136
Dividend received from listed securities B EESFRE 4 265 593
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEREZHE 15 (611) (6)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries LEMB AR 2R R L FE 32 - 1)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BRETHEH(FA) EE2ReFE
activities (195) 722
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from issue of shares pursuant to placing of RIERERERD EREMRODEITRGD
existing shares and subscription for new shares FiECE S - 42,990
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares RIRELE BB IR TR Z FEIERZ R
pursuant to placing of existing shares and - (695)
Bank interest paid BTRITHE 8 (486) (4671)
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (1,936) (1,960)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEK(FA) EE2ReFE
activities (2,422) 39,874
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRALEEERCRL) EMFHE
equivalents (34,919) 17,641
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INBIERGB o B (794) (988)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the FYRERELEHEER
year 72,389 55,736
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRESRESEHEER 36,676 72,389
Represented by: AUTRE:
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE R 25 36,676 72,389

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 38.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Vongroup Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company and Mr Vong Tat leong David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company, who is
also the chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except for per share data. Hong Kong
dollar is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
is the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss that are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBB|RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFMNAZ+THLEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

9

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

*  Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (note 2(x)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 35.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair values, except that:

— adeferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

— assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE

2. EEREFEE (A)

d)

EBEH

WER R VR AU AR - REB A B RERIT
Bt 8 ANBEAGKEBE cEERASBERUEIET 28
BAEANEE 2 ARERAKER ISR T 2 PG
T2 RN A2 AT EENE - BB ERARL
A —RREERIER TR -

RUERS CUBEAHREERDAZRBEREDTER
R HETIIRB RS -

- THEEBAHPCUBEENRAEREMRELZELT
HAREBESRERERZE 2 BEERBZE NS
FHGFEREREMEE 2 REBE LT 2 BB DHRESR
BETEAE12RAEHERRE

- FRHEERNZHZEAELARERBERAEGENE
19575 (& AR F R KAt &

- EBRERURGAERZAREHEHIRAEE
SRR A EEE 7 (K2 E (AR BB 5 AR5 o 2
B2 REEMAT ) A2 B ER AR TR DR
B8 B A B O SRS R B 2R AR D B LR 2 (R
HE R

- BEEBUBRELBESRFEHREZERDEER
ERIEEEEB D ERTEHEZEE(HMEAR)
RBZERAIGE

PEETYARME R 2 B R 2 E I SFE RS
BRUE T AR A 2RI B s A E(INE) 28
0 ORPTURER 2 AT R B E R TR 2 AN R
Bi% BHZZEHE WEER[%R MREZAEE
EHEMAEAENKE R OFESRERZAE  RER
FETT 2 R SRR AR 5 & R A S BB 7 SR AT A 2
AR AFEMNAE) ZEM - RIZBEAE MRS AR
REERERE -

BREHAEEES AN ERERSBEABREZLINEE
BEEFEFERER S RATERIERERE
ERRBE AR EEFECCRAS B E - ER
RBFEHERZHMEHERE - A ER 2 IFERERTIRE
RFER(NER) B —AB W ME LRI E 2 B

=
g2

WARBEREBEFhER RERERARBLFES
ZEESRMA AARERERBEEHATFEFELRAA
REBAGTFAERZRE—HD - IRREZATFERS
(PR ENRARER)TEPAR ERUHEELZ
HEBE FERRBIRARFERR (B RERHET
Bl —F )W A E 2 FE ISR EFRINEAM
SIEZ R

TEEBERTEAMNAERNRKAKNBRAFEZHOER
B RERRRNLARBERNFAE - DR AERNIA
RETGEARBEAPRENFEUARER ZEEBFTA
BN DEREENIRNE TSR RERE A HEN
BURERZBERAERN - DERBERBENRA
REZZREBBGLAEIRMB IR  BRARAERE
BEIENFE7REE IRBERIREERAEER)
EHRZBEARNENE  TERSTHRBENRERE

‘e

31



32

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBB|RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFMNAZ+THLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

€)

f)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that unit shall be tested for
impairment before the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(j)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is depreciated over the term of
lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion;

—  Leasehold improvements 20% or over the remaining term of the lease,

if shorter

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20%

—  Motor vehicles 20%
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

g

h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(u)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 2(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(i).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(u)(v) and (ii).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j). Dividend income from equity securities is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

—  Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an investment property on a property-by
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(g)); and

—  Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 2(g)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

j) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

f any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other receivables and loans
and advances to money lending customers, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade and other receivables
and loans and advances to money lending customers directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

j) Impairment of assets (Continued)
if)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in
the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  (alculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

m)

n)

o)

p)

q)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 2(j)).

Loans and advances to money lending customers

Loans and advances to money lending customers are non-derivatives financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than (i)
those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading; (ii) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (iii) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investments, other than because of credit deterioration,
which will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and advances to money lending
customers mainly comprise pawn loans, unsecured and secured loans. Pawn loans are loans
provided whereby personal property mainly such as gold, jewellery and diamonds, watches
and consumer electronic products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Unsecured loans are loans without collateral. Secured loan is a loan provided whereby the
property is used as collateral for the security of the loan.

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral are initially recognised at the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, which is generally below the net realisable value of the
repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the assets, the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Subsequently, forfeited collateral is carried at the lower
of the amount initially recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written down
if and when the net realisable value falls to below the carrying amount of the asset. The
excess of the net proceeds over the carrying amount of the forfeited collateral is recognised
as a gain upon the disposal of the assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

s)

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year under review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated losses).

iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

u)

v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Revenue from food and beverage businesses

Revenue from food and beverage businesses is recognised when catering services have
been provided to customers.

i) Interest income

Interest income (including financial services income) is recognised in profit or loss on
an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

iii) Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral

Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the forfeited
collateral is delivered and the title has passed to customer.

iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

v)  Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

vi) Revenue from technology and media businesses

Revenue from technology and media businesses is recognised when the services have
been performed to customers.

vii) Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and those
held for trading include realised gains/losses which are recognised on a transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/
losses which are recognised in the period in which they arise.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v)

w)

x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Consolidated statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as
a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary,
all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

i) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and
cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Xx)  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (Continued)

ii)  Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.

y) Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

viii

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel service to the Group’s or the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the chief
executive director of the Company, being the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
HKAS 38 Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exemption

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for the Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 41
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue from the principal activities of the Group. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:
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3. B BEEH

RAFE  AEED GRRBE BT DGR T3] R
RIETRBFBIRMELER -

BRI IBRE LR ZIEET ERVBEREEAN T ——FF
—T - UEEE s FE

ERGHEUNE IR 25T WERE

EAGHENEREEEG BENMERBHEZIERSE

ETHERIFE385E 2 85T

EAGHENE2R 2B BUMBRERZERE

BERIBREELE05 - BF REKE - ERAIHRE

MRS EAFE 2R RES

SRS 288 2 5]

EREMBRELERBENRZET RECECERENETERE

ERGENFE 1R RBBE B - £EMEY

B F R 2 BT

BBM B wE LR 1458 EEEIRIERR B

RAFEEAH REETESNBEREENEAFE BT
FEAEE VBRI RRIAR Rt 56 M HREET
ZHBEITEBEATE -

4. W

W tE A RE 2 EBEBRA - FRBERARERA 2 EFER
BT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Continuing operations: HEEEER

Financial services income S FEARELA 2,413 10,513

Unrealised gain/(loss) on equity investments at fair value through & A FEFF A ([ AFEAHABR ) 2 BHRE Y
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) KEBU S (E518) 4,849 (10,814)
Realised gain/(loss) on equity investments at FVTPL BRATEFABRSZBHREZEERK (Hi8) 519 (1,454)
Gross rental income from investment properties REBEME L BHSKA 4,553 5912
Income from technology & media businesses Bl R g B8 MU A 12 7,117
Income from food & beverage businesses BEREBIWA 156 100
Dividend income on equity investments BHILERBMA 265 593
12,767 11,967

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by business lines (products
and services). In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s executive directors, being the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following six reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending, other financial/business services
and related activities

2. Securities: Securities and related activities
3. Property: Real property and related activities

4. Technology & Media:  Technology & media and related activities

5.  Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food & beverage business and related
activities
6.  Corporate treasury Management of treasury activities of the Group and related
management: activities

The restaurant operation in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) that had been identified
and included under the food & beverage segment in previous years was discontinued during the
year ended 30 April 2016. The Group will continue to pursue opportunities in more financially
effective food & beverage businesses in Hong Kong and/or other countries.

The segment information reported below does not include any amounts for the discontinued
operation, which is described in more detail in note 10.
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BE-T-

tFEA=+TRHILEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s CODM monitors the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets and current assets with the exception
of certain available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include accruals and deposits received, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities attributable
to the operating activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales
or financing activities generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those

5. DEHE (&)

a)

segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation to those segments.

Segment revenues and results

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 30 April 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

SERE XK BERRE

HAEDERAREDBHARERM = - ZIK%@ZIE%&"
BRREDBUATEEERSRATRRD B2 W ¥
BBEREIE:

DHREETERREBREDBZMARBNEEARRE
FAREERERAMOEEEI I RDEE - D FRER
EBRBID B EEER B FARERIZE BN
B RIEFERIRE - AR D R ERE R ZRITHEE -

WH BRSNS REEDEMEL ZHERXREETH R
HESPMEECHAXSAZS SR EERNEMEEZ
HR D FEAETHRBRIE

oyl e E S
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi;‘i:x—ti&* T-RFOA=ZtHIEFERMH

FAKRBTZELERREEDRARRABRRFERE
ZAEEBEDFERBINT

Continuing operations

Segment revenue Segment (loss)/profit
P EWE AE(ER) R
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF —E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT FET FAT
Revenue from external customers: KBRS
Financial services TR RRE 2,413 10,513 1,583 1,232
Securities B 5,633 (11,675) 5,619 (11,794)
Property LIES 4,553 5,912 10,385 6,643
Technology & Media ity K 48 12 7,117 (5,224) (2,251)
Food & Beverage ZER 156 100 92 (17)
Inter-segment: DHEM
Corporate treasury management ENBEE 7,992 7,705 - -
Segment total DM 20,759 19,672 12,455 (6,187)
Elimination ESgeS| (7,992) (7,705) - -
Total for continuing operations FHEC & XI5 185T 12,767 11,967 12,455 (6,187)
Unallocated items: ROBCIER ¢
Other revenue and other gains Hiblas R EMEF 985 1,128
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBELERT (17,681) (13,957)
Finance costs BARS R AN (486) (461)
Loss before taxation FRALATES 1B (4,727) (19,477)
Income tax 5% (80) 87
Loss for the year from continuing operations R4 [EHE LS 25 E1E (4,807) (19,390)
Funds financing activities between segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms. SERzESRERETIREE W E 2 G0

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of other revenue and other gains, corporate expenses and finance costs of the Group that
are not allocated to individual segments are classified as unallocated items. This is the
measurement basis reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BAEXARAT

F3R2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEmRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-T-tEMA=+ALEE

5. DEHE (&)

a) 2EWE & BEREE (B

Segment assets and liabilities DEEERAE
2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Segment assets PTHEE

Financial services & AR 33,843 34,187
Securities B 21,483 21,984
Property bZES 199,613 194,931
Technology & Media iy K p a2 63,807 11,275
Food & Beverage B 3,274 2,931
Corporate treasury management EMEERE 17,101 45,665
Total reportable segment assets 2RO EEERE 339,121 310,973
Unallocated property, plant and equipment KOBHE - BEMEE 13,995 13,896
Unallocated available-for-sale investments AoBAl B ERE 1,532 1,532
Unallocated cash and bank balances ROBE & MRITHAR 358 228
Unallocated other receivables® Ao B LA JRE L B 3+ 19,903 19,153
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEEEE 1,351 2,108
Consolidated total assets RAREE 376,260 347,890

* Unallocated other receivables represented the right arising from the termination of an available-for-

sale investment in Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”).

o RDEEMELERFIER L IERRRRIERER AR (TRK])

2R ERAMELE 2R

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Segment liabilities SEEE
Financial services SRS 164 676
Property bIES 31,760 34,344
Technology & Media Rty M 48 551 677
Total reportable segment liabilities AEmoEaERE 32,475 35,697
Unallocated liabilities APBAME 1,991 2,237
Consolidated total liabilities AEBAaRE 34,466 37,934

RERSBERREN BRI ERME

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— segment assets exclude certain property, plant and equipment, available-for-sale
investments, cash and bank balances, other receivables and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

— segment liabilities exclude certain accruals and deposits received and other
unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

- AREETERERETHE BERRE JHEER
B R RRTES  EMRUEER AREMRDE
CREEZEAE RAANSEEDNHRHE MEE-

- SHRRBETEFEETE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

a)

b)

q

d)

5. DEHE (&)

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) PEWZ %5 EEREE (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEEREE (B)
Additions to non-current assets* Depreciation Bank interest income
BEERBEE" e RITFRIE WA
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF —E—tF —E-RF —E—tF —T-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET FExT FAET FTER FHT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Financial services SRR - - 13 14 36 44
Technology & Media By & i ae - _ - _ 1 1
Food & Beverage ZH - - - - - -
Corporate treasury EMBER
management - - - - 114 91
Unallocated KOS HE 611 6 512 520 - -
Total HET 611 6 525 534 151 136
* Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments. * FERBHEETBRIEAHEERE -
Revenue from major products and services b) FEERRREZWE
Please refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for more details. BT %15 H2H A BHmEMN T4 o
Geographical information o HIEER
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. AEEXEBEEDMHNES - P B REFT
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external customers BENREPEEZASEREEEEBRAZER IR
is presented based on the location of goods physically delivered to or location of services PREERI TS REAEF 2SI RIRE 2 FTHib 2
provided to customers and the location of the investments being listed. Information about ME5] BEEERBDEEZERNNERZSEE 2 BN
its non-current assets is based on geographical location of the assets. g
Revenue Non-current assets
Wi FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—XF —E—+tF —ERE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Continuing operations: BESEEK
Hong Kong B 12,241 10,873 232,875 180,250
PRC s 526 959 8,854 9,969
Macau P - 135 15,100 14,500
Total @t 12,767 11,967 256,829 204,719
Information about major customers d EBEBIEEFZEH

During the year ended 30 April 2017, no external customers in all segments contributed
over 10% of total revenue of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2016, two external customers in the Technology & Media
segment, two external customers in the Financial Services segment and one external
customer in the Property segment contributed over 10% of total revenue of the Group: HK$5
million and HK$1.67 million, HK$8.55 million and HK$1.24 million and HK$1.9 million
respectively.

BE-T—+tFWNA=-+THILFE  AEHER L EEMIN
BEPERMAEE B AEB10%

BEZZ - AFORA=-THLEEE BiiREEI>BHEE
IBES - SRBBEDTMBINLETS RWED B — B
HEFERAEBAIA Z10% 5 3l £5,000,000/5 7T &
1,670,000 JT  8,550,0007% 7T }2.1,240,0007% 7T 521,900,000
e



OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS
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BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

6. Hfsrim R EMEF

2017 2016
—E—tF A=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations: HELEEE
Other revenue Hib iz
Bank interest income RITHBIA 151 136
Other interest income E A S HA 750 584
Management fee income ERBPA 120 120
Sundry income HIBBA 57 10
1,078 850
Other gains Hip 2 F
Exchange gain, net I 5 W a0 F 58 - 350
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 7. REBE
The Group’s loss from operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEFARBBERLLEBZBRLLHR (GTA) &8 :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Cost of inventories consumed KOEREIFER AR 64 17
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments — note 11): BTINA(BREESHE —ME11):
Wages and salaries I;ﬁ&%’rf 8,362 6,999
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RRREFIFT B 92 83
8,454 7,082
Auditor’s remuneration® BT &

— audit services — B %R 500 500
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W HEREETE 525 534
Exchange loss, net* & 5 518 F R 557 -
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease payments LERHAS - SEROER 579 564
Gross rental income from investment properties less direct outgoings of ?ﬁﬁ%%iigﬁflﬁAfﬁiﬁﬁﬁHﬂ%’UZO&OOO\}%T_E

approximately HK$209,000 (2016: approximately HK$123,000) ZE X 49123,0007T) (4,344) (5,789)
* This item is included in other operating expenses. * HEBEAAEMEERS -

FINANCE COSTS 8. BHSEA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly repayable within five years BERAFABEEZEZRITEERNE 486 461
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term loans which contain EONMBERBREERGEMEMEEERRERZEITEE
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set (BREMEREREEGRZEHER) ZHBEXR -HE-F
out in the loan agreements. For the year ended 30 April 2017, the interest on bank borrowings —+ENA=+RALFEE MERERKEERRZEBTEEZH
which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to approximately HK$486,000 (2016: B.49/5486,00075 7T ( = Z— 754 ¢ £9461,000057T ) ©

approximately HK$461,000).
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9. INCOME TAX

9. FIEH
a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other a) SABEERHEMARSERAERBECEERE ZHMEH
comprehensive income relating to continuing operations represents: b=
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Continuing operations: BHELEEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) (note 28(a)) B EATEH ([ EAEH)(MiE28() 8 60
Deferred tax (note 28 (b)) EERTE (M 5E28(b))
— Current year —RFE 72 (147)
Income tax charge/(credit) for the year REFERE,(EE) 80 (87)

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, BVI and Hong Kong has been made as

the Group has no assessable income for the year in these jurisdictions (2016: Nil).

The provision for PRC EIT is calculated at the standard rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the
estimated assessable income for the year as determined in accordance with the relevant

income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

b) Reconciliation between tax charge/(credit) and accounting loss at applicable tax

AEERFATECHERE ZBELHBEREERIUE
IR - UL 5 7% 5 BDAME R 2 PTSTR IR BUE
(Z2—REF |)-

PRI EMERDREEERA SRR RERMERE
ZIREBE25%( =T —RF : 25%)  WAFE A Z HEHER
UGS B

b) BIEXH (ER)EZEAREFEZEHBRZERK:

rates:
2017 2016
—E—+tE ==X

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FATT
Loss before taxation BRALATE 1B (4,727) (19,477)

Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at the rate RERARABERB AR AEN 2 BIEtE -
applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned (876) (3,304)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose RAMERA 2 MG E 543 3,352
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BARBIMAZ MG E (2,083) (1,670)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERADAREBB BT 2 2,424 1,682
Tax effect of temporary differences recognised EERTREE I METE 72 (147)
Income tax charge/(credit) for the year REEMBERZE(ER) 80 (87)

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

10. CRIEEEEK

The Group and an independent third party, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party agreed to acquire,
100% equity interest in Kamboat China Limited (together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, the
“Disposal Group”), which has a restaurant operation in the PRC at a consideration of HK$500,000

(subject to post-completion adjustment).

The restaurant operation in the PRC was classified as discontinued operation and the assets and
liabilities attributable to the restaurant operation have been classified as a disposal group held
for sale as at 30 April 2015. The disposal of the Disposal Group was completed on 15 May 2015.

The profit for the year from discontinued operation is set out below:

AEEE-FZBUE=FAIVEEHE Bt AREREHE
RBUF=7RBEURENTRELEBEZSERTRHAERAR
(EREZAMBABMNBEIHEAR ) 2100%E A EE  KE
/%500,00078 7T (5 ek 1R %) -

RIZE-AFNA=Z1TH RTBEZERLEE D ERERLE
BEBAREBEEREZEERABCHOERFKEFEZL
EEP - HEXRBZHEER T —AFRAATHABTK -

BRIEEEB 2 FRENRINNT

2017 2016

—2—tF —E-REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group (note 32) S HEHE R 2 e (f5E32) - 27,749




11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emolument disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance are as follows:

11. EEME

A EEARAT FHR2017
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017

HE-2—tENA=ALEE

BEERLTRARTERRGIIREZESIHENT

Year ended 30 April 2017
BE-Z—tEWNA=+HLEE

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
Fees in kind Total
e
)=3-'3
we REYEF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Executive Directors BITES
Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) w=iEy (TTBBE) 3,500 600 4,100
Xu Siping TRETE 500 - 500
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David VEEL: 100 - 100
Lam Lee G. MK 150 - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna B9 100 - 100
4,350 600 4,950
Year ended 30 April 2016
BEZZT-XENA=1THILFE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
Fees in kind Total
e
AL
ik REWRET “@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
Executive Directors HITES
vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) =iE (TTBBE) 2,300 600 2,900
Xu Siping RETE 500 - 500
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David HER 100 - 100
Lam Lee G. MR8 150 - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna T 100 - 100
3,150 600 3,750

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 30

April 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, Vong Tat leong David, the executive director of the
Company, agreed to waive his remuneration of HK$1,900,000 (2016: agreed to waive his
remuneration of HK$3,100,000). Other than this, there was no arrangement under which a

Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for both years.

RBE-Z—tFR-_Z-R"EFOA=THLFE KEBRLHE
(7] 8 5 3T Sl FE AT B 2 LA TR 51 55 N BB AR SR B SR /B AR DDA

RIS SRR E

REEZT—+FNA-THILEEE ARAYRTESHES
B REREEME1,900,0008T(ZF— F : AENEEME
3,100,0007 70 ) < Brifb 2 91 AR EF E AR T U R HERE = S

BEXFEHERETAHE -
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2016: two) are Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 11 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

12. AUFMESES

IUFMESALA WE(ZE—RF: WE)RESE EE
RERMENEE R =8(ZT—RF : ZR)AT2HH®

other three (2016: three) individuals were as follows: ECy NN

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—XF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,176 2,160
Retirement scheme contributions RKETEIHER 54 54
2,230 2214

The emoluments fall within the following bands: BENFATEE :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the

years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016.

13. DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the year ended 30 April 2017

(2016: Nil).
14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the owners of

HEZZtHFRZT-R"FUA=THILFE AEEWER
EARRFESES AL HERMBME - (ERIMAREBR I
ks R (Y A

13. RE

ERNTEARNBE_ZT—tFOA=+TRLFEZRE(Z
TRF )

14. SR(EE)BR

FEREXBRORIERERER
ARBEHEEAEEEREARIE(BR),/ B EHRATA

the Company is based on the following data: #
2017 2016
—E—+F =R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss)/earnings (1] B7
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per et EERERLEH (E8B) &7z (B1E),/ &8F
share (4,807) 8,359
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic gttt & GA%EA R (Fi8),/ Biz
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share T w9 182,018,435 156,375,921

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 30 April 2016 has been adjusted for the share consolidation on 11
February 2016 and the bonus elements in the shares issued under the placing of existing shares

and subscription for new shares completed on 4 January 2016.

For the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016, diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per

share as there is no potential ordinary shares in issue.

A EBE—T - RENA=ZTRLFEZSRERARETR
FzEBmBRMEFARERR-_T—"F_A+—AZRHE
FARKR —ZF—RFE-ANRTRBHREEERE RN LREN
BAn 2 DA T RAETTHE -

BE_Z—tHER-"FTRFOA=TRLFE SREIER
EERAAEBRAR REARTEDHTEELER -



14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

15.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company

is based on the following data:

A EEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE

14. SR(ER)BA (&)

ARAEE NEEGREARETERAEDRATER

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—XRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Loss BB

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company RNAREA AREANEE(BE),/ T (4,807) 8,359
Less: profit for the year from discontinued operation W RNFEERI LR - 27,749

Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing FLatE S B L XX ERER L EEE 2 HE
operations (4,807) (19,390)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per

share.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for discontinued operation for the year ended 30 April
2016 is HK$0.1775 per share, based on the earnings for the year from discontinued operation of
approximately HK$27,749,000 and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted

loss per share.

P2 5 B bl st B G REAR RS E R A EER -

BRIERE XK

BE-Z- A FHNA-+THILFE BRIELCLEBZEHRER
REERFAER7/SET  IRECRIECEEB 2 ATE
B F4127,749,00078 T & EillGIREAR R EEHIE 2 HBEE -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% BERRE
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings held fixtures
for own use Leasehold and Motor
carried at cost improvements equipment vehicles Total
BAR AR
SIERFERR &AL -
Z2HEEL e ®E
RigF MELE R#E RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHT FAT FAT
Cost 2%
At 1 May 2015 R-ZE—RFRA—H 15,926 106 951 3,874 20,857
Additions NE - - 6 - 6
Exchange adjustments JEH R - M (12) - (13)
At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZZE—AFHA=+AK
—ZET—-R"FHA—H 15,926 105 945 3,874 20,850
Additions NE - - 25 586 611
Written off s - - - (806) (806)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 F % - (1) (16) - (17)
At 30 April 2017 RZE—+tFMA=1+H 15,926 104 954 3,654 20,638
Accumulated depreciation ZEIAE
At 1 May 2015 RZZ—RFHA—H 1,696 83 732 3,874 6,385
Charge for the year KEELH 442 16 76 - 534
Exchange adjustments JE N A - m 9 - (10)
At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZZE—A"FHEA=+HK
—ET—-R"FRA—H 2,138 98 799 3,874 6,909
Charge for the year REFZZH 442 7 76 - 525
Written off E6| - - - (806) (806)
Exchange adjustments I 3 8 - M (13) - (14)
At 30 April 2017 R-Z—+FmMA=+H 2,580 104 862 3,068 6,614
Carrying amount REE
At 30 April 2017 R-ZE—tFWA=1+H 13,346 - 92 586 14,024
At 30 April 2016 RZZE—-A"FHUA=1+H 13,788 7 146 - 13,941
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings held for own use is as follows:

15. Y¥E BERRE (&)
BEEAZESEL W REFREESTHOT ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
In Hong Kong: 5%
— medium-term leases — R ERFA A 13,346 13,788

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had pledged its leasehold land and buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately HK$13,346,000 (2016: approximately HK$13,788,000) to secure the
Group’s bank borrowings.

RZT—+FMNA=+RH AEEDEFRREFEAL13,346,000
BIT(ZT—7NEF : £913,788,00008 7T) 2 T E T RIBFIARER
REEZBITHEE-

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REMH
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At fair value BRAYE
Balance at the beginning of the year FH 2 s8R 187,959 186,949
Exchange adjustments G (640) (515)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRER 2 A EEINFEE 6,620 1,525
Balance at the end of the year FRZ &8 193,939 187,959
The analysis of carrying amounts of investment properties is as follows: REVEZREEINNOT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
In Hong Kong 'k
— medium-term leases —hEAE A 170,300 163,820
Outside Hong Kong FEAERIN
— medium-term leases — R HEIFR A 23,639 24,139
193,939 187,959

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

The investment properties are leased to third parties and a related party under operating leases,
further details of which are disclosed in notes 33 and 34(a).

At 30 April 2017, the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$91,400,000 (2016: HK$87,200,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 27).

AEEAKERERASEARDPEAS RARIEEAEER S
2B EEEEARTERNGE IARRREMENR -

REVEBRBEEHELHBETE=T R —RHBEAL E—
BB RNTEE33 R 34(a) K FE ©

N-T—EFMA=+AH AEEE@ES 191,400,000 7T( =
T — N4 1 87,200,000%57T) MR EMEC AR T ASLE ZRTT
AR (M 27)-



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment properties measured

at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair

value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

16. REWE (4#7)
REMEZ A TEE

THRAZIZAEBEREMRE 2 RFETINREPRRL
BUEARGE YN BEABTBMBRELAFE BRI T(E
EMREZ=RATERE -BRVEAEDEZEHIE
SEMTHRERMAABBE IBEERERNRETE

E—RfhE: BERE- S ABBRARABARAE
EREERZRIERT S 2 REHBERE)

HEZAFE

E_REE: RRF-RBARRBIREZIE R
AEEHAE) AYREREATTEE
BWABIRE 82 A FE T BEHARE
REMSEIEZ AR

E-REE: RREATITHRERARBAECATE

As at 30 April 2017
R-ZE—tHFWMA=+H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
E— E-R B=R AEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Commercial properties in Hong Kong MNEBZEEME - - 93,400 93,400
Commercial properties in the PRC AR E 2 EEYE - - 8,539 8,539
Residential properties in Hong Kong REBZEEME - - 76,900 76,900
Residential properties in Macau KR EEWE - - 15,100 15,100
- - 193,939 193,939
As at 30 April 2016

RZT—R"EFMA=+AH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
F—1 F_ E=4 NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT
Commercial properties in Hong Kong REBZEEY - - 91,200 91,200
Commercial properties in the PRC AhE 7 s - - 9,639 9,639
Residential properties in Hong Kong REBZEEME - - 72,620 72,620
Residential properties in Macau KR EEYHE - - 14,500 14,500
- - 187,959 187,959
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

i)

i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 30 April 2017, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 30 April 2017. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited (2016:
Asset Appraisal Limited), who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of properties being
valued. The management of the Group has discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs

fhE R TABRZBARE

16. REYE (&)
REWE APEHE (42)
) AFEEE (H)

RRE-T—+FMAS+ALFR S—RAB-R2AH
LHBE DEBARBEE=R(CT—AF : ) AE
B2 IR AR B 2 B AR ERR 2 B
2 AFE-

AEEREREMENR " Z—LFNA=TREHNEE 4
ERBLASMITHHEEETERRERAT(ZE—R
FopmEEEVERRERAR®IT B AT BAE
MEamE cREFANOREMEMED R BREDE
ETREZ LR NERPHARFEREE A ETHER
AEEEEEDEABMTRAERIRGEER

REFHREDNEZ ATER ZENEZERSRRERER
HRBEME-

i) BEFE=RIFETSEZEH

Range of Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs input to fair value
FAIBERH A
BEHE FTUTEEBERQITEZEER

Investment properties in Hong Kong
REBZIREME
— Commercial properties

Direct comparison Adjusted market price

approach (HK$/square feet)
ESZES HELEDE AR ZTE
(BT FHR)

— Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market price

approach (HK$/square feet)
—EEME BEELEBE KA CTE
(BT FHR)

Investment property in the PRC
RRBZREME
— Commercial property

Direct comparison Adjusted market price

approach (RMB/square metre)
—EEME HELEVE KA CTE
(AR F75K)

Investment property in Macau
PRPIZ IR EME
— Residential property

Direct comparison Adjusted market price

approach (HK$/square feet)
—(FEME HELEE AR CTE
(BT/FHR)

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC is
determined using direct comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square feet/per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s properties compared to recent
sales on the comparable transactions. The higher the adjusted market price, the higher the
fair value and a favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transactions will result
in a higher fair value measurement.

HK$8,050 — HK$35,777

(2016: HK$7,928 —

HK$32,108)

8,050/ 7T — 35,7778 7T
(ZZ—REF:
7,928/ 7T — 32,1088 7T)

The higher the adjusted market price, the
higher the fair value

KREzMEMSEATELES

HK$7,568 — HK$27,247

(2016: HK$8,831 —

HK$23,502)

7,568 70 — 27,2474 7T
(ZZT—REF:
8,831/ 7T — 23,5025 1)

The higher the adjusted market price, the
higher the fair value

KRBZMEURAATELRS

RMB29,000 — RMB35,000
(2016: RMB28,000 —
RMB35,000)
AR®29,000T - KFB2HEESULXTEES
AR#35,0007C
(ZE—REF:
AR#28,0007T —
ANERH350007T)

The higher the adjusted market price, the
higher the fair value

HK$6,120 — HK$6,645
(2016: HK$5,661 —

The higher the adjusted market price, the
higher the fair value

HK$6,900)
6,120/87C - 6,64587C AR ZMEERAIRFELS
(ZZT—RF:

5,661/ 7T — 6,900/ 7T)

UREE RFIRFEZREMEZ XTEDERERLER
EEE  HE2EMHREBNERGT AR GFHKER
EEFEZAMEE BERARERTEEZRERER
TR AHEEX D LLEANE)EHAE - WG HEZTE
BRABATERS WA HEBRS 2 HREBELE
AR HEEYHEMSZATFERS -



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

A EEARAT FHR2017
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBRERME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

. BEWE ()
RENEZ AVEHE (F)
i) BHE=RATEGNEZEN (E)

Commercial C cial Residential Residential

properties property properties property

in in in in
Hong Kong the PRC Hong Kong Macau Total

REBZ RFEZ REBZ IRz
[GES/ES [GES/ES FEYE TEYE F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FET FET FET
At 1 May 2015 RZZE—hFHA—H 90,500 10,759 69,890 15,800 186,949
Exchange adjustments E R AR - (515) - - (515)
Fair value change NHEZF 700 (605) 2,730 (1,300) 1,525

At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZZE-—RFNA=+HEK

—E-RERA—H 91,200 9,639 72,620 14,500 187,959
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 58 & - (640) - - (640)
Fair value change NHEZE) 2,200 (460) 4,280 600 6,620
At 30 April 2017 R-Z—tFWA=+H 93,400 8,539 76,900 15,100 193,939

Fair value adjustments of investment properties is recognised in the line item “change in
fair value of investment properties” on the face of consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. All the gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss for the
year arise from the investment properties held at the end of the reporting period.

BREMEZATEENEN GEBRALEMEEAKERTUER
AYMEZATVEED ] —HIR RRERARFEZREDER
FREF AR, (BB ERETER -

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cost 2%

At the beginning and at the end of the year RENRFE 11,383 11,383

Accumulated impairment losses Z2BREER
At the beginning and at the end of the year REVREFE 11,383 11,383
Net carrying value REFE - -

Goodwill, being the expected future profitability, arising from the acquisition of pawn loans
business.

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the cash-generating units of
financial services business (“financial services CGU”).

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
financial services CGU as follows:

AEEAEWEAE EREBELEZRARRBNEES

BECAREARENIEEERRBEB ZRSELEML

((ERRBREELEM])-

RERHREBR N HEZEAEE T EEERRBASESE

BmT

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—XRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FA&TT

Goodwill 5k 11,383 11,383

The carrying amount of goodwill had been fully impaired during the year ended 30 April 2014
due to the uncertain market conditions.

BRI FEZEASEREBE

IFFEEBEORE -

T-mEmMA=1A
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18. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19.

18. BENX BERRBXT2EE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—XRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year FYRFRZ &% 367 367
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AIHHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted investments: FEHRE :
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) TR R (M) 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, at cost (note (ii)) EEMBHRE R (M) 56,397 10,350
57,929 11,882
Less: Impairment loss recognised o B RRIREEE (9,430) (9,430)
48,499 2,452
Notes: FHEE

As at 30 April 2017, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately HK$48,499,000 (2016: approximately HK$2,452,000) were stated at cost less impairment
because they did not have a quoted market price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates was so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments:

) RZZT—tFMA=+H" BREFELH8499,0008T( =T —x

SRR B RS 2 ATE

i) AEEFELTERREZHHN

2,452,000/ 70) 2 A B A E R A TR BT E AR
WEUHPNERTISORE BB AFEMTZHERA  HE

2017 —F—tF
Impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
Z&: WEEE FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FHET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 9,430 (9,430) -
Claman Global Limited (“Claman”)* 38,293 - 38,293
Partners K&K Limited (“PKKL") 7,754 - 7,754
56,397 (9,430) 46,967

* This accounting treatment represents the mark-to-market value of 23,349,436 shares (the
“Consideration Shares” referred to in the Company’s announcement dated of 26 September 2016) at

¥ R EEE23349B6RBRN(AAREHA-ZT—RFNA

ZHARRMAEMRIRERD D RETEHKS

BER 6478

the closing price of HK$1.64 per share on the date of issuance. LAt ENMISEE

2016 —Eas
Impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
PR RIEEE ARE(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Honest Pro 920 - 920
Newport 9,430 (9,430) -
10,350 (9,430) 920




19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes (Continued):

ii)

Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments (Continued):

a)

Honest Pro is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The Group had 20% equity
interest in ordinary share capital in Honest Pro. The Group does not participate in policy-making
processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest
Pro. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group does not exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policies of Honest Pro. The investment is therefore accounted for under HKAS
39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

Newport is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The Group had 19.09% equity
interest in ordinary share capital in Newport, which was fully impaired in the financial year of 2014.

Claman is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. Claman and its subsidiary are
primarily engaged in the financial technology industry including in relation to crowdfunding and
technologies and services that seek to increase the efficiency of online financial transactions. On 26
September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Vongroup Investment Holdings Limited
(“VIHL"), entered into a subscription agreement with Claman, pursuant to which VIHL conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and Claman conditionally agreed to issue and allot 29% of the issued share
capital of Claman (approximately 22.48% of the enlarged issued share capital of Claman) at the
consideration of HK$29,000,000, which was satisfied by allotting and issuing 23,349,436 shares of the
Company at the issue price of HK$1.242 per share (note 29 (iii). On 7 October 2016, the Company
issued 23,349,436 shares to Claman. Based on the closing price of HK$1.64 per share on the date of
issuance, the fair value of the Company’s shares issued amounted to approximately HK$38,293,000.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 September 2016. The Group
does not have the power to appoint a member of the board of directors or equivalent governing
body of Claman. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group does not have significant influence
and the power to participate in Claman’s financial and operating policy decisions. The investment is
therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

As stated in the subscription agreement, if the audited consolidated net profit of Claman for the
next full financial year is less than HK$10,000,000, there will be an adjustment to the consideration,
pursuant to which Claman shall pay to the Company an amount equal to the Company’s pro rata
share of such shortfall. Taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, including the
business prospects of Claman and the growth prospects of the fintech and crowdfunding industries in
which it operates, that such profit will be met. The Directors are of the opinion that the assessment
of fair value of contingent consideration is Nil.

PKKL is a company incorporated in the Republic of Korea with limited liability to pursue
investment and institutional fund management related business. During the current financial year,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company made a convertible loan HK$7,754,000 (equivalent to
US$1,000,000) to PKKL. Assuming that as at 30 April 2017, the convertible loan is fully converted, the
Group would hold approximately 19.9% of PKKL's shares. The accounting treatment of the convertible
loan is an equity instruments. As PKKL has no contractual obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset, other than the coupon interest thereon (which is 1% of the principal amount of the
convertible loan per annum), to the Group, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with the Group under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to PKKL. The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group had no power to exercise significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of PKKL. The investment is therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as “Available-
for-sale Financial Assets”.

20. INVENTORIES/FORFEITED COLLATERAL HELD FOR SALE

a)

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE

19. AHHERE(HE)

W (48 -

i

ARARFEETEFRE 2 DM ()

a)

Honest ProR N EBE X B STMA L2 BR AT - REBER
Honest Pro.z & i f% AR b 35 H20%fi tE - AL B A E L AR
Honest Pro7> IRA% B sk B E fth 3 TR 2 R EFHRHIFT B2 - EH
RR - AEEE Honest ProZ ISR EERRWMERTES - il
BERBEBGHEREIFARA I HEERBEE]

NewportB R H B R Z B S Mk L2 AR A Al REERB
Newport 2 I 38 B AN F 3 /5 19.00% A5 48 - BN =2 — a8 FE
HEORE

Claman 7 7 58 B2 Z B Bt Ak 2 2 AR 2 A © Claman & &
BRAOIENSCANEE DRFHRERSKESE L
BROBENEMEARE - R=_T—AFAA=+ 8 AQA
2 2 &K B2 FVongroup Investment Holdings Limited ([VIHL )£
Claman?T 32 — 13 B fE ek - # Ut - VIHLE (& 14 A E 328 M Claman
BIEMHRE 51T REE amani)29% 2 B TAR A (Claman#)22.48%
B AE A B B AT AR AR) - 18 /329,000,000 7T+ B BIREITE
G %1.24278 T B K B 1723,349,436MR AR A B R 19 M 32 A (B 5F
29(iii)) e A =T —=RF+ AL B - AR A [ECaman 723,349,436
BRA&AD © 1T B IRV I B B AR 648 TTATE - AR RIFTEAT
i #) R F{E#938,293,000/8 7T < e — HFEHRNARF AHA—
T—RNFNAZFTRAZAHN - AREEEZEA(amanNEEE
HAFEARBEZERB -EFRA AEME NamanI fEE R
P& B E2HEamant I 5 R BHERE 2 EN  HIRE
REEB G RN ARA A HEEHBEE ]

GRSREE R AT Al - AnClamani T —E T 28 BUF B MR B ix bR S
HEFIME 210,000,000 7T+ 1B G E H FEE - #R 1L - ClamanZE A
AR HAFRARD TS ZREOIR L GO RE - 8% EAE7H
EERER B iECaman®) EBATR R EL SR S REHT R
BRETENERAMFRZEFEEER -EFRA FEORA
RERAFERS -

PKKLAR RERBEEMA I BRAR HEREREEESE
BRI TS - KRBT B TS - KA Bl — 12 & M B 2 AR PKKLEE
#£7,754,0007 7T (A & 71,000,000 7T ) W AT $E R B 30 - RN =
T—tFMA=+HATHREFEREEIR  AEEEHAPKKL
EIRR1 £919.9% o AIEIA B A & TR IE AR T A - [HPKKLIL &
ARNBEBAAEERXNREKEMIBEEE(REANS(FFRA
SR EFREBH%) BRI - SUAT BRI PKKLE I B2 AN S

R BEEXNEEE - EERA  REBLPRKLE I K&
BERRITESAPEN YWIRERBESGIERERAR
RIATHHERBEE]-

20. FHE /HERRWERR

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: Q) FEUMBMRRERMIIZEEERE:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Inventories — food & beverage products GFE-Z20ER 1,947 2,011
Forfeited collateral held for sale (note) FRE B8 WO 3 5 () 699 705

Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery.

BERRERRBERS RIKE
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20. INVENTORIES/FORFEITED COLLATERAL HELD FOR SALE

b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is

as follows:

20. BE HERRWERR

h) BRAMIBHAGEAEZRHEMZEKRKERAZFEERE
ZAWMTE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Carrying amount of inventories consumed KOHEFFE 2 REE 64 17
21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 21. FEWRRR
The followings aged analysis of accounts receivable is based on contract dates: EREH BBz BURERZRRS AT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Recoverable on demand BBk E U ER TR 4,050 4,050

22

Accounts receivable related to an independent customer. Based on past experience, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of the
accounts receivable as there has no significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation. Receivables are
regularly reviewed and closely monitored to minimise any associated credit risk.

USRS E—2BUEP AR REBEELR EFERA AR
EEE R EERE b MAEHRT AR AT UL - 10 £ 31 8 R K
TR BRBUERE - ARBEWERZEEHRI A EERR -

ARBERENARZ EFEIE EP 2 BREZEEME - A%E
B A AR W) B - AR ERIER 2 E R AR
BEIE -

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS 22. MRBEEFERKR BN
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Balance at the beginning of the year FHZ kEER 15,043 8,387
Loans advanced BIER 18,189 17,856
Repayment during the year FRERE (17,568) (11,200)
Balance at the end of the year FRZ R 15,664 15,043
The loans bear interest rate ranging from 3.60% to 50.4% (2016: 5.25% to 50.4%) per annum and HEERXWEEFEN F3.60%2504%( —F — N4E : 5.25%F
are repayable according to the respective loan agreements which usually cover periods not more 50.4%) WERE S BERIBRER  H—RORT@BEB—F -
than one year.
a) Maturity profile a) ZHER
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
Unsecured Secured Unsecured Secured
short- short- short- short-
term loans term loans term loans term loans
receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total
BWEER EREEA EUmER  EREEA
BEHER BEHER st EHEE RHEE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FHET FAT
Due within 1 month or on demand VEAAE Heir ZRkER 35 341 376 2,703 382 3,085
Due after 1 month but within 3 months  11& A & {831 A A 5| 5 435 - 435 5 - 5
Due after 3 months 31E A& %I H 14,853 - 14,853 3 11,950 11,953
15,323 341 15,664 2,711 12,332 15,043

As at 30 April 2017, no loans and advances to money lending customers were individually

determined to be impaired (2016: Nil).

REZ—tHFOA=+TH HERRESP SRR ERIKE
BIEETE RBE(ZT—RF : &)



22. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS (Continued)

b)

Loans and advances to money lending customers that are not considered to be
impaired are as follows:

A EEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

22. AREEFERRBR ()
b) RERABEZAREEFERRBRMT :

2017 2016

—E—tF T —REF

Unsecured Secured Unsecured Secured

short- short- short- short-

term loans term loans term loans term loans
receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total

ByEER EREER EYEER  EREEA
BEHER BEHER st REHERE REIE X “ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired I # s B SlORE 15,323 14 15,337 2,711 12,332 15,043

Past due but not impaired EEEET ERE

Less than 1 month past due BHIRE A E A - 46 46 - - -
1to 3 months past due wEN =3 A - - - - - -
Over 3 months past due & BB A3 (A A - 281 281 - - -
15,323 341 15,664 2,711 12,332 15,043

Loans and advances to money lending customers that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

As at 30 April 2016, the secured short-term loan receivable of approximately HK$4,200,000
was secured by certain residential property. The loan was fully settled during the year ended
30 April 2017.

As at 30 April 2016, the secured short-term loan receivable of approximately HK$7,750,000
was secured by all assets of the lender and guaranteed by an independent third party. The
loan was fully settled during the year ended 30 April 2017.

As at 30 April 2017, the remaining secured short-term loans receivable of approximately
HK$341,000 (2016: HK$382,000) were secured by collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold
and jewellery with aggregate value of approximately HK$638,000 (2016: approximately
HK$702,000) which individually has value over the respective remaining secured short-term
loan receivable.

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

EOHMTEREZAREEFERRBRY S REEBE
ZHBERA  WETE IR A

RZZT—RNFHA=1H - EYREERE B E 44,200,000
BLTUBETEEMEEER - ZERERBE_Z—CFN
B=+BHILFERELES -

RZZ—R"FHA=1H  EBREIEREHER7,750,000
BTABERAMBEERELE = FRREER - ZERE
REE-T—tFMA=THILFERHLE -

R-ZE—+tEMA=1+A FapERAKFEHEERY
341,000/ 70( = Z — /< 4F : 382,000/ 70) AEAR(EE AL
RIEF Fe RKE)FIEF - 2B E4638,0008T(=F
—NF T 49702,000% 70 ) HERIEERAS AFBRELRS
ARG EAE K -

23. BE  BNRARRAEGERRR

2017 2016

—E—tF —TE—XRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Prepayments TERTERK 936 1,467
Rental and other deposits (note (ii) THe RE MRS (i) 15,758 7,940
Rental receivables RS 350 195
Interest receivables e A B 439 -
Other receivables (note (i)) o th Ui AR SR (BT EE()) 24,149 25,890
Less: Impairment o ORE (2,720) (2,720)
Other receivables, net Hip R FUEE 21,429 23,170
38,912 32,772
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23.

24

25.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes:

i) Included in other receivables is an amount of approximately HK$19,903,000 (2016: approximately
HK$19,153,000) which represents the right arising from termination of the available-for-sale investment
in relation to Tian Da. The debtor has agreed to transfer the title and ownership of a property located in
the PRC, which has an estimated market value of approximately HK$20,700,000 at 30 April 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$20,361,000) based on a professional valuation conducted by Asset Appraisal Limited,
to the Group for the settlement of the debt owing to the Group. This debt is bearing interest at the rate
of 5% per annum. In the opinion of the Directors, the debt can be fully recoverable and no provision for
impairment is considered necessary.

The impairment loss recognised was a provision for the long outstanding receivables for debtors and the
receivables were considered doubtful. The Group did no hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over these balances.

i) Included in the balance of rental and other deposits are amounts of approximately HK$15,550,000 (2016:

approximately HK$7,754,000) as refundable good faith deposits paid for proposed investments for which
the due diligence are still in progress. The deposits will be refundable subject to the result of due diligence.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. B&  BAARRR At RR(2)
GER

) BRAHEEKERRARZ S 419,903,000 T( Z T —NE 4
19,153,007 70 ) AR IE B R K 2 Al I SR A T E 4 2 4 o (&
BACRBBURREZDE(PREESETERMERDAIMREZD
ER Tt FMNA =+ BETEEMGEZ HETE£920,700,0007 7T
(ZZ—RF : £920,361,00070)) Z FTA R HAEERTAER A
ERERARER B LLEBREF %R - EERA  EBET2H
WE - RRAEBELRERE -

ERRZAEEEAREBANRPREREUGIBELORE B
ERFIERRARE - AREI AR ZFERTE T BT R E A
SRR -

i) BRESREHMZEARZSELI5550,0008T(ZFT—RF: 4
7,754,000 70) DR RNE S RBES Y BEREIMEAHNES -
FIRENRBBLE THRAATEIRE -

24. RAFEFABRZESRE

Trading securities BEEES
2017 2016
—E—tF TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
At fair value: RATHE -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BB LEMBHFRE 21,483 16,201
Note: PH5E -

The fair value of the listed securities are determined by reference to their quoted market closing bid prices
available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year, the securities
business has recorded approximately HK$5,633,000 in segment revenue from a fairly diversified
portfolio of listed equity investments, held for trading purposes. Although there was an increase
in asset value, this was almost entirely (over 85%) due to mark-to-market unrealised gain
of approximately HK$4,849,000 (from increase in market values) as at 30 April 2017 (2016:
unrealised loss of approximately HK$10,814,000), and only less than 10% was due to realised
gain transactions of approximately HK$519,000 (2016: loss of approximately HK$1,454,000).

During the year in review, these transactions did not constitute notifiable transactions pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

LIHERFRAZAVEDRBEPRSEFMELRISAARZBHEA
BEEE-

WERA M |MEAM AT BE  EN BHEBHBRABEE
B EMEFREZ A E D B 45,633,000 7T < FEE
BEGBEEN BLTE2(He%KRAR-_E—+FMA=1
B M {ERHE N R T IS 494,849,000/ 7T (- 8 T {EE )=
T—NF: REREE10,814,00087) ETENM0%KEDER
U35 32 5 49519,00078 7L ( = F — 754+ [E18491,454,000/8 7T )

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25. RERWITHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—XRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHESR 34,664 70,270
Time deposits with original maturities less than 3 months REE R DR3ME A 2 E#BFER 2,012 2,119

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial ~ REAHBR AR LGARERERY

position and the consolidated statement of cash flows BeRBESEMEEE 36,676 72,389

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged from 0% to 1.4% (2016: 0%
to 1.4%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$15,119,000 (2016: HK$19,022,000), of which
approximately HK$11,846,000 (2016: HK$12,553,000) are not freely convertible into other
currencies.

FRRIRIT 2B E RFETIR%E4%( T —NE  0%E21.4%) 2
FREFE

RBER AEBMUARB(TARE D ENERE S KRR
% 82 4915,119,0007 7T ( =T — 75 FF © 19,022,000/ 7T )+ E A 4
11,846,000/ 7L ( — T —754F 12,553,000 70) Al B R AH
fhE -



26.

27.

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED 26. ERtREREWIEZES
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT
Accruals fERT IR 1,420 1,537
Accrued staff benefits fEEtE &7 181 1,044
Rental and other deposits received BlHe R EMES 749 1,626
VAT and other tax payables FERHGER R E AT 25 2
Other payables HAth e FRIA 511 281
2,886 4,490

Except for rental and other deposits received, all of the accruals and deposits received are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

BEEREMBUIZEIN TR RIARB IR TREAT N —
FRB KRB AERRIEE

BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Bank borrowings, secured RITEE BEA 30,140 32,076
The carrying amount of the above bank borrowings are repayable: FiRITEE ZEREEAR A T EEEER
2017 2016
—E—tF — N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 2,009 1,985
Within a period of more than one year but less than two years iR —FEDRME AR A 2,019 2,013
Within a period of more than two years but less than five years BBMFEIRAFHER 6,225 6,211
Within a period of more than five years BiBAFHER 19,887 21,867
30,140 32,076
The carrying amount of bank loans that are not repayable within one 7B IREHI KL —FREE B S AIFERE5K
year from the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment on (B EF 2 IRTEREEE (T AR EE)
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) (28,131) (30,091)
2,009 1,985
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities BN RRBEE —FRIESEHE (2,009) (1,985)

FIRIERBEEZEH

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$14,326,000 as at 30 April 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$15,334,000) were secured by certain investment properties with fair values of HK$46,500,000
(2016: HK$44,500,000). The interest is charged at 0.7% per annum over 1-month HIBOR, and
capped at 2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years 2016 and 2017.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$4,487,000 as at 30 April 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$4,739,000) were secured by an investment property with fair values of HK$16,900,000 (2016:
HK$15,500,000). The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at
2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years 2016 and 2017.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$5,865,000 as at 30 April 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$6,212,000) were secured by an investment property with fair values of HK$28,000,000 (2016:
HK$27,200,000). The interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at
2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years 2016 and 2017.

The balance of bank borrowing of approximately HK$5,462,000 as at 30 April 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$5,791,000) were secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost (note 15) with net carrying amount of approximately HK$13,346,000
(2016: approximately HK$13,788,000). The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month
HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years 2016 and 2017.

B ZEISEARBEERIBEMTA MERRER-
RZE—tFMNA=+HZRITEEL14,3260008 T(=ZF
— 734 ¢ #915,334,0007%5 7T ) LA A F E46,500, ooo,mz( -
F 44,500,000 70) 2 & TREWVEEER - —T—RFR=-F
—tFMF B8R —EABBRITRAEREMOTIEZFH
RUER - F R R R RREBFIER2.5E -

RZZE—tFNA=+HZRITEER4,487,0008 0(ZF— <
& #94,739,000% 7T ) A A i@m%ooooﬁéx(_? N
15,500,000/ 70) 2 R EMEEER - —_T—RNFR_F—LFW
F2FEHR= @A BAETRERS M 25E 2 FFIRIUTE
MmEFE R RREEFERF2.75E -

RZZE—tFNA=+HZHRITEEL58650008T(=F—
& #96,212,0007% 7T ) BA A F {E28,000,00078 JL( = F — N F ¢
27,200,000870) Z R EMEEER - T —RNFR_FT—+FM
FzRBHR=MABBRITREREM SEZFFEUE -
& I R £ IR A S 8 B 2.5 -

RZFE—+tFMA=+THSFEL 785462,0008 T( ZF— <
F ¢ #95,791,0008 70) 2 RITEEER T AR S BRI FELD
13,346,000 70 ( == — 75 4F ¢ 4913,788,000/8 7T ) Z AR AN 51| (&
FEBAZHE i RIEFERA(HF15) —T—RFR=F
—t¢ﬂﬁ¢2ﬂ§fﬂ¢z 18 A BB RITR ZEHFS801.25E 2 FF
KETE - MENE LR AREBEFER2.75E
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BE-T-

tFEA=+TRHILEFE

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a)

b)

q

28. REMBMRRREH Z BB

Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial position a) HMEAUBRRREN ZENHFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year REL] 829 829
Provision for the year IEERAE
— PRC EIT (note 9(a)) — B EAET (FTFE9()) 8 60
Tax paid SEUNE T
— PRC EIT — R EMEN (8) (60)
At the end of the year RER 829 829
Deferred tax liabilities recognised: b)) ERRELEHBEME :
Fair value
change in
investment
properties
REWMEZ
ATEEE
HK$'000
FATT
At 1 May 2015 RZZE—hFhA—H 686
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 9(a)) FTAGZEIBERE (M) (147)
At30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZE-RFMA=FTAR=Z—X"FAA—A 539
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 9(a)) STAMREBERE (MFa) 72
At 30 April 2017 R-ZE—tHFWMA=+H 611

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$194,759,000 (2016: approximately HK$180,068,000) available for offset against future
profits, No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$1,309,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,309,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

q

RS HIR - AN E A AR E) AR TEE1849194,759,00078 7T
(ZZ—7N4F © #9180,068,00078 7T ) 7] A S5 R IH F - B
KRR FEMAREFR QA BELCHBEECHER K8
AR EEEEREEE -

B

m““qﬂlm%ﬁﬁ SHE BT N\F—A—H& FEK

AR BEET R EUE A 2RI BB RMTENT - AR AEE
ﬂ%@%\lﬁé@%‘*ﬂ%%%ﬁzﬂﬁaﬁ BERERENA LERETE
[ - R st P BT A R TR EUE A B 2 B EEELY
1,309,000 70 (ZZ — 754 : £91,309,000/8 7T ) R 4R & B 755k
RIELIEER B -
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i)

On 4 January 2016, 893,755,000 shares of HK$0.001 each were issued by way of placing of existing shares
and subscription for new shares at a price of HK$0.0481 per share. The net proceeds from subscription for
new shares was approximately HK$42,990,000 which was intended to be used for general working capital of
the Group. The excess of the placing price over the par value of the shares issued was credited to the share
premium of the Company.

The Company’s share consolidation was effective on 11 February 2016 pursuant to the resolution passed at
the special general meeting on 5 February 2016. Every 40 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.001 each in
the share capital of the Company will be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.04 each.

On 7 October 2016, 23,349,436 shares of HK$0.04 each were issued at a price of HK$1.64 per share in
relation to the subscription of 22.48% of the enlarged issued share capital of Claman (note 19). Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 September 2016.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

iii)

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RE
Number of shares HK$’000  Number of shares HK$'000
RHEE FET e B FHAT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 May 2016 (ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each) and REZZE—RNF(SREE0.04FITZ
2015 (ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each) TERE-_ZT—RFRA—H
(GRREE0.001B T HimAk) 5,000,000,000 200,000  200,000,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) &5 & OF (HE (i) - - (195,000,000,000) -
At 30 April 2017 and 2016 (ordinary shares of HK$0.04 AT —+F K - F—XF A
each) =+ H(ERmE.4ETL
iRk 5,000,000,000 200,000 5,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAZ :
At 1 May 2016 and 2015 RZE-—RER-Z—1F
AHA—H 168,840,397 6,754 5,859,860,900 5,860
Issue of shares pursuant to placing and subscription RIEALE KRB BT TR (BT EE())

(note (i) - - 893,755,000 894
Share consolidation (note (ii)) {10 & B (B EE (i) - - (6,584,775,503) -
Issue of shares (note (iii) BT (M X (i) 23,349,436 934 - -
At 30 April 2017 and 2016 REZE—tFR=T—RF

mA=+H 192,189,833 7,688 168,840,397 6,754
Notes: T

MRZT—XF— AMA +893,755,000% &A% 80.0017% 7T 2 IR 15 i8R A
EIRE R KRB 7 IR GA0.0481 8 T 2 BAR 1T - REHTR
BETERIEFEL42,990,0008 THARNEE y — g EES BE
BRECEITROEEZ DB ARR R 2RO HE -

RERZF-AEF-ARRZERFEHIAE BB ZRER ARF
ZBROEHR T —RF_A+—BER-ARARATEREE
0.001/8 70 2 408 2 81T R AREITRM & 6B 1 B EE0.048 T
ZAGHREL ©

MZT—RF+AEA 23349436l REE0.0478 0.2 R RE
Clamanf)22.48%4% 48 K B 817 IR AR 42 8 R 1.6478 70 2 (B % 847 (I 5
19) E—SHBERNARFBPA-T—NFALAZT B ZAHR -

TREREAGRERB TR EIRZBE  TAERNARBBRK
SLREBRBRHE—R MEEBRERARRBEETERSE
AL
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. R AESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including non-executive directors, employees of the Group, any other groups or classes
of suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and the Company’s shareholders
determined by the Directors as having contributed or who may contribute to the development
and growth of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remains in force
for 10 years from that effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon the payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date
to be notified by the Directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted. There is no minimum holding
period before an option may be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings. No share options under the Scheme were granted and outstanding during the years
ended 30 April 2017 and 2016.

ARRR-T——FNA=TRERNBREAB([FH8)) 5
ERHAEEEBELRRMZ A ER2LE L ER R ER -5t
B ABR2EEREARFAZER(REFNTES) F5E
BER AEEEFEMARISRER 2 HER  BE D HENR
B URESRA/EEAALGHAKEEBEREREAR
B2 ARRIBR - BRIFR A TR RERT  BRIGT BB A LKA
P+ FA-—EAR

RIRET & RE AR W AR T2 BRI TS R
Z Bty ERBERAR TEEHE%WE%GHW\ZW% A
ToERYRE FERAERDEEER CBRES N 2 ATHTT
Hﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬁ/ﬁ‘%$@TEEH%FQE%HHM%Z% FIMRHBH
UL IR B2 B A B R R K& R L -

BFIAES THRAHIARATERE kS TRHE
ANTZHERE BABEEARR 2B IIFNITESI A - It
S WA+ ZEA R T ARAREZRES B IEHNITE
$Eﬁ2%ﬁi%2fﬂﬂﬁéﬁ§)xt2ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%2ﬁEﬁEi&Zﬁ"T&Eﬁﬁ%
FEEBITRG 201%RBEREAARFELBERESE BAQF
Bz B R W EEE)Hi85,000,0007% 7T « BE ALK %7(@
ERERRER AL -

ARATBREBREZZHE B — T - BAXNEER
BTz R2HRE ERARRE BRETRERARERESR
REENH (AEFAEEREA) HRBERRIE &IGRITE
HERARTEBRABREREARL RENE B LT +F-
BRETTEA L B RESEHR -

EREZITRERAEREET BTEERTIREE : ((RE

MBS B AR BN 2 W (E (ii)ZlS"ﬁH%’\EOE%T%

%‘iﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁé*‘“ﬂﬁl AR S AL FGRTE : KA
REFA 2 EME
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BE-ZtHFR-_Z-ARFEA=ZTHLFE BEERES
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31.

32.

RESERVES

Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

b) Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which the Company’s issued
share capital has been diminished on the cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be applied
by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allocated to shareholders of the
Company as fully-paid bonus shares.

¢)  Statutory surplus reserve

According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the PRC company is
required to transfer 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the PRC company’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to the shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital in proportion to their existing shareholdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

d) Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(v).
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f#fE

REMERAR
a) RiaE

B EEREAZHSHERRENRE - RERNSHS
RAVE BMEERZESA NI T ARBBR HEARF
EEBEZRERSREAADAENEEEATERD
MBS 2 (BT

b)  RAEEIRR

BABERREDARFSETRARETHEBERND M
BOZ - REMESHERRE AR B A HRAE D
FERARINARRBRRES B2 RETRG (EREHMRRK
FRALAL

o EEEBFE

BEARR ZPEWMB AR EHERME] FEIRMBA
AR R B & w47 R R AR DI 2 10% 5 B AR AU AR E
BnFHR EATARREEHRENTEAREMAERZ
50% - IEBRAIERE SRR BREZREHELAR
DIRBE TR Z ATHETT

EERBRFEET RERBATFEZBENAE) LARR
BRBLOIEEEBRRERBRBERAR EBRE 2 EHT
BAIREMERZ25% -

d) [EXEE

ERREREABBBINEB M BREMELZMAE
SN 2 o S AR AR IR TR 2(v) U @ 5t IBUR R 32

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32, HEWBAR
The Group and an independent third party entered into a sale and purchase agreement, AEBE-ZBEVFE=HIVER RS B AEERSLEE
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party agreed to acquire, EBVE=FREKRENTRCEERE 7 2EMPRER AT
100% equity interest of Kamboat China Limited together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, EBRIE 2B M EBAE 2 100%% A #2551 A500,0008 7T (5%
which has a restaurant operation in the PRC, at a consideration of HK$500,000 (subject to post- REAE) HEER_E—AFHAA+RABTR - TXEFARZ
completion adjustment). The disposal was completed on 15 May 2015. The amount of the ©E /50,0007 7T - EEFHE A450,0008 7T ©
post-completion adjustment is HK$50,000, resulting in the consideration being adjusted to
HK$450,000.
Further details of the disposal are contained in the announcements of the Company dated 20 EHEEZFZHBHN AR BHA-Z—HFNA-+H "
April 2015, 28 April 2015 and 12 October 2015, and circular of the Company dated 15 May 2015. ZE-RAFNAZ+N\BR-ZZE-—RAFETA+TZHZAHBUR
ARARIBHA-ZT-—AFRA+RABZENR-
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: KEPPEEEGECEERBEST
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment LER ] 412
Inventories w8 301
Accounts and other receivables JE LT AR 30 B EL A P W 5k TE 6,350
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHES 370
Accounts and other payables JREA<F B K % L At FE A< 5k TE (13,862)
Income tax payable FER TS (22,661)
Net liabilities disposed of HEREFE (29,090)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. HEMBERAR(A)

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries: HEHB ARz Kz -

HK$'000

FAET
Net cash consideration received BEHEReRE 369
Net liabilities disposed of HEaESE 29,090
Cumulative exchange loss in respect of the net liabilities reclassified from MEAEMB AR EEREREN D EE

equity to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiaries BREZAEFEZRTELEE (1,710)
Gain on disposal (note 10) & e (BEE10) 27,749
Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
HEELEZHLRHHFHE -

Cash consideration RERE 450
Expenses paid in cash incurred on disposal HERELAURES SN ZER (81)
Consideration received BRE 369
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of W HEZRe RIRTTER (370)

33. OPERATING LEASE 33.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 16) under operating lease arrangements,
typically with leases negotiated for terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the lessee to pay security deposit.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases with lessees falling due as follows:

HEBEY
FEEEREEA

AEERBEESEOLEFLAEREDNE (M E16) —REHS
M o A GER—RIRERFEEA N EIRRE

RBEHR > REERBT AT HEHL LA T2 5 B R
RO FEM B AR K FROR AR -

2017 2016
—g—t#F —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
Within one year —FR 2,078 4,090
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MERF(RIEEREMF) 478 1,221
2,556 5,311
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. EXBEEALTRS

a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions and balances with its related parties during the year:

a) BRAZRSGEAUMBHRREMBTAEENRS REKN
FEERFFERNEREATETUTEARS R

2017 2016

—ZE—+tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Professional and corporate secretarial service fees (note (i) SERNEMEREER () 2,034 514
Rental income (note (ii)) e WA (HEEE() (486) (484)

Notes:

i) The professional and corporate secretarial service fees were charged for services rendered by
corporate secretarial firms which are controlled by a close relative of a Director, Mr Vong Tat leong
David. The transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

ii)  The rental income was received from a company, which is controlled by a close relative of a Director,
Mr Vong Tat leong David. The transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

B
) EERATNEBREZ BB E FEESEE 2 E R A
AREAAFTRERBT LN - RERHOBR LRI HERS

i) BERARBEFHRESAEZMRMZHZAR - ZEXHOHEK
LHRALZRERS



34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b)

Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of Directors and other key management personnel during the year are as
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34. ERBEALRS ()

b)

FTEEBAEZHME
FRNEERAMEEZEEABZMENT

follows:
2017 2016
—B—tfF STRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Short term employee benefits EHREERER 4,950 3,750

35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as discussed below.

i)

i)

iif)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
which requires significant judgment relating to the level of revenue and the amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued at the end of the reporting period by
reference to comparable market transactions by independent qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the judgment, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for similar properties
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period.

35. EAEFHHE R A E

a)

THR LR 2 EERIR

REBAEE ST BRR(EI N2 2 @R ERES
RIBERRTARGT ZRAREEMEBERRELRETE
BRE ARRRAIESHEER T AV REFEHEER

REZEEEFEHERRBZERRR  &HIAT -
i) UE BERREZAEAFHY
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178 ZMET AR ERE ) - Al A FHERE
Rt 2 FH ERERRESTEER NS HER
H 8 2 BT 38 B 35 3 SRS 1 2 S S HORL

i) Y BERRERE

EEMKREeEREAFTEREEKXAREEREER
ERzREE EEHEREER  DEfRARARRE
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35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iv)

V)

vi)

Impairment of accounts receivable, loans and advances to money lending
customers and other receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an
evaluation of the recoverability of the accounts receivable, loans and advances to
money lending customers and other receivables, where applicable, at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of the accounts receivable,
loans and advances to money lending customers and other receivables balances and
the historical write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.

Allowance for inventories

The management reviews its inventories at the end of the each reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer marketable or suitable for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and tax losses only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. As a result, management’s judgment is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The current taxation for the year ended 30 April 2017 was income tax expense of
approximately HK$80,000 (2016: income tax credit of approximately HK$87,000). The
carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as at 30 April 2017 were
approximately HK$611,000 (2016: approximately HK$539,000) and approximately
HK$829,000 (2016: approximately HK$829,000) respectively.

b) Critical accounting judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

i)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment. Judgment is required
when determining whether an impairment is existed. In making this judgment,
historical data and factors such as industry and sector performance and financial
information regarding the investee and certain specific conditions surrounding the
transactions giving rise to the investments are taken into account.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a)

Financial risk factors

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk
and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligation resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy
of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and loans and advances to money
lending customers, in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. With
respect to accounts receivable, other receivables and loans and advances to money
lending customers, credit evaluations of debtors’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major debtor periodically. These evaluations focus on
the debtors’ past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the debtor operates. The Group does not require
collateral in respect of accounts receivable and other receivables. In respect of loans
and advances to money lending customers, the Group held collateral, mainly land and
buildings, gold and jewellery, for securing the debts. Debts are usually due within 30-
90 days from the date of grant or as agreed in the respective agreement. In addition,
the management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debts at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables, loans and advances to money
lending customers, the Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor. The default risk of the industry and
country in which debtors operate also has an influence on credit risk. At the end
of the reporting period, other than the accounts receivable of approximately
HK$4,050,000 (2016: approximately HK$4,050,000), the refundable deposit of
approximately HK$15,550,000 (2016: approximately HK$7,754,000) (note 23), other
receivable of approximately HK$19,903,000 (2016: approximately HK$19,153,000)
(note 23) and the secured short-term loans receivable of approximately HK$341,000
(2016: approximately HK$12,332,000) (note 22), the Group has no other significant
concentrations of credit risk which individual balance does not exceed 10% of the total
other receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers at the end of the
reporting period.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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36. IKAKREERERER

a)

BB EREE

AEEAZEERR RPESRR FMEER S¥ERR
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EEREERRERZSRR UEREEARERESZ
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RUBERZAR A EEERMN—EBR BHAR
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RO ERR EEEBRM-EGEBR  REGRER
EE 2 BREERE o BREUERR - H AR UR R K
REEFPERRBRME  EHRHZEBEBALTH
BRI 2 EER - AR RETREBABRE
SN EFIRZ RHE LR BRI 288 St R iE
BARBZERFPENRARH AN EERBZEERE -
7S S5 8] 00 45 Ak R S B 0 T L A B MR BR SR B SRR AR & o A
AREEFERRBRNE AEEFEERRER
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ER-stit s  EFERR/AKEZEERBRARRNE -

BEMR R AU M ERPERRBERM
T ASEEARZZEERBREZZEREBHA 2SI
HE BRACEMETERERZENRR I ERE
BEE R o A RS BR - bR FEUAR 5 494,050,0007 7T ( =
T — X5 1 494,050,000 7T ) » AR B £ £915,550,000
FBIL( =T —7NF 1 #497,754,00078 70 ) (M 7E23)  H At fE
W BR 50 4919,903,00078 70 ( —ZF — /<4 © £919,153,000%8
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a)

i)

36. IBAKMEBRBEREE(EZ)

Financial risk factors (Continued) a) HBEBREE(E)
Liquidity risk i) REEZER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for its own cash AEENSBUAEERASTAERSEREIE &
management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising RReBHURIRERERERUENERRST
of loans to cover expected cash demand, subject to board approval. The Group’s KO MERZEEGZHIEFAEE - AEEZBRATE
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its HERNBLRENRBDECHE RETEERE MU
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of BREAFSAVRESFERN T ZECHBBIGEH
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to AEAeRME NENEERHERBRBESE R K
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Group relies on bank EERBRTEERBERTHES TR
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining contractual maturities at the UTZRBESRBRREGUAGNARURZASTRE
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual BEEZAEENKEBERREBRZHB TSR
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual (BIERE DR RN (M AZEF )R RE R 2B
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the FEHEZFEMR) URAEBAHERNRS &
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: FHE:
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FRH B —F BIBWE =¥ SE N BRMEE
RER BRABMER BREFR RERE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FExT FHET FExT FET
2017 —B—+F
Accruals FEE 30B 1,420 - - 1,420 1,420
Accrued staff benefits fEEtE 7 181 - - 181 181
Other payables H b EARIE 511 - - 511 511
Bank borrowings RITREE 30,140 - - 30,140 30,140
32,252 - - 32,252 32,252
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—F A i —F BB M F AHARBE EREE
RER BRMERA BEREFR REME ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
2016 —T-RE
Accruals e 1,537 - - 1,537 1,537
Accrued staff benefits FEZTE T487 1,044 - - 1,044 1,044
Other payables HAbfERFRIA 281 - - 281 281
Bank borrowings |ITEE 32,076 - - 32,076 32,076
34,938 - - 34,938 34,938




36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

i)

jii)
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36. IBAKMEBRBEREE(EZ)

a) B¥EBEREE)

Liguidity risk (Continued) i) REELERE)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “within 1 M AR EROERIERZ RITEEE BB ST
year or on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2017, the FEA—FERSNIZER | 2BRERN R —+F
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to approximately WA=+H ZERTEEZLREEEL A30,140,000
HK$30,140,000 (2016: approximately HK$32,076,000). Taking into account of the BIL(ZZF—NF : #932,076,000/8 70 ) &5 AL E
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that the Z SRR ERRARIT A BT TE BB SR AR
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The BHR-BERE ZERITEBBREERIGEEA
Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the THEEEFBHBEREE - A M BEFE2EER
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows. However, in MR ZEHR - ERALH RS AIHERERERZER
accordance with Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements- ZEHREBRZE AZERITERESBEARDE
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand f&e
Clause, all such bank loans have been classified as current liabilities.
Maturity analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on demand clause based on HEST —BARERKERBBEEEERPERZ T
scheduled repayments. B3
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years amount
BB—F BBWE REEH
—FR BRABMER BEREER BBRE M
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHAT FHET FHET
30 April 2017 —E-tfWA=+H 2,504 2,504 7,413 21,380 33,801
30 April 2016 —E-REMA=TH 2,435 2,435 7,344 23,447 35,661

Interest rate risk

Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits, loans and advances to money
lending customers and bank borrowings the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Bank deposits and bank borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The loans and
advances to money lending customers issued at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank borrowings have been disclosed in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest risks.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HK$ borrowings.

i) FEE R

BETAEERITER  ARETPER R RRITRE
B AEETEERGREEREME  AREZRA
REERERERH EBINTHNE 2 EE - RiTH
REREPFRBEHZRITEECASEELER DR
EFRER - ZEEFEREERTPEHZERRBER
EAEEEAHRSREFNLAR -FRAEERITEE
ZHBORERA P B MM 27 E -

7 5% B 3 A BT AT AR N 2 9 B A S BT 4 2 R R

AEEZRERENERBREIEETRAEE ZET
fEEFTE £ 2 BB RITR RS ERE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 36. IRAKERBERBUR(E)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued) a) HBEBREE(E)

iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at
the end of the reporting period:

i) FIE @ ()

0 FIEER
THRAVNAEBEERREHAR 2 FIRBR

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —ZE—RF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
A EES BRI
HK$’000 HK$'000
% FHET % FET
Variable rate borrowings: BEFEEEHE
Bank borrowings wITEE 1.1-2.2 30,140 0.9-2.1 32,076

At 30 April 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates would increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses by approximately HK$252,000 (2016: approximately
HK$268,000).

i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.

iv)  Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the
management monitors its foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedges should
the need arise.

i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB and United States Dollars
(“US$”). The Company is not exposed to material currency risk at the end of the
reporting period.

RZF—tFMA=1A  HiHEEEMNEE
o0 10018 E B S 0, D AN EBEIRR T %
BIER2EEBEL252,0008 (=T —RE 4
268,000/ 7T ) ©

i) R

EREEH T HBRAERERALRLY
e - 3 AR K A 2 FATA B T A
FIERR - Z100EES 2 BB HER R
ERERBAET —BEEREMAAIET4
B2 88

EBEER

AEEZEBTEETBRTE KEEET 2 BB
A ZSMERR  REHIFNBR IR B EZH
ERERGREREERAE -

A E R EE AR INES T - IEE R EERE A
ERR - W HE BT ZE ST

) ALEEER

TRADAEENREARZERERNGEES
PONEBHEZCHBREERBEMELEZ B
Rk EESRER s EETERARBERET(E
T ARRRMER AT BEEHEREEER -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HK$’000)

EH 2z SR (L FETHIR)

2017 2016
—B—tF ZE-RF

RMB uss$ RMB uUs$

AR¥ ESE ARE e

Overall exposure arising from recognised assets DR EENBEMELE Y

and liabilities: R
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER

15,119 3,455 19,022 5,646




36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

iv) Currency risk (Continued)

v)

i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s loss after
tax (and accumulated losses) in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.
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36. HEABEEAERBE (&)
a) MBEBERE)
iv) EHEE(E)
i) BUEEST
TRETHRBERRAEEMAREKRRER 25

BERZABARED MAEERBRER
(REMEER) HBR 2 BOES -

2017 2016

—Z—+tF AN
Decrease/ Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) on loss after (decrease) on loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange  accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
BB EEER BB EE R
SBER X3 HNEEBE R RiEEE
ERHATR) ®WP> M) EACRE) R /(Em)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
RMB AR 5% 631 5% 794
(5%) (631) (5%) (794)
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign HREE DT TIBRRIMNEE R NIREHIRHIREF

exchange rates had occurred at the end of the annual reporting period and had
been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rate over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between HK$
and US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
US$ against other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’ loss
after tax and equity measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments of
trading securities classified as equity investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to
buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the stock market index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

TIREAT - YA BRI P 2 2 G 3
PR TA Y HEER - MAA LR (S
RHE)RITE

Gz BEHEERE N EINEERRHAET —
BEFEEREARATERERZEH U™ F - TR
RETHEXTHBMEERERARE LT
ELRAMER CBEMEFNEZSHZE - LRIIR
ZAMEREFAEBTHER 2B BREBERIA
BEWREERNRERRABEINRZERBRRINL
BB B RIECBRTE  —F—NFZD
IR AR R BT

v RAEREER

AEERZATEFABESHEREFRECEER
FimEZREZLBHRR -

AEEZ ETRFRENBRM LT -BEXHEEER
FBHRZREDERNEGAERERNFFHEREETS
BURREMTERRZRANURAERAZ AHESH
B -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v)  Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30 April 2017, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease) of 5% (2016: 5%) in the
relevant stock market index (for listed investments), with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) as follows:

36. EEMREEREERBK(E)
a) HBEBREE(E)
v RAEE@EE(E)
RZZE—tFWNA=+H ZHBAKRETSER( L
THRE) LA () s%( —T—7NF : su)MEATEE M

Y EE A AREZBRRRER(RRRER)E
BIMTRATRRD, 0 :

2017 2016
—E—tE —EAE

Decrease/(increase) on loss after  Decrease/(increase) on loss after
tax and accumulated losses

tax and accumulated losses

BREEEBER MRt EE &
REEE EXi )
WD) A/ (35hn)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Change in the relevant equity price risk variable:  EEAA(E @ & & 2 EH) :
Increase #hn 5% 897 5% 676
Decrease Vo (5%) (897) (5%) (676)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after
tax (and accumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

vi)  Fair values

i) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

(i)  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively.

(i) the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

(iii) the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table give information about how the fair values
of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used).

BEEATET  BREENSEREDE AR EREE ¥
BB FR A B 3T 21 B A B T 8 00 3R 25 R (4 B T B
B (B4R LB 2 B T - A B B 1B (R R H8)
BEER S EE . MERAEEBARE 2 A TEEREN
MR RIS I B2 BRI TR B AT R A B IR BT
B o T XE 2SI R 1T -

vi) ~FE
) EBTAZAFHE

BB EEMI B A ENRTERR TR ERE :

() BEAFEEGERARGHLFEERTIGHOMB
EERPMBRENDTED S RIEENE
BIISRITHERRITRERT

(i) PTETANATFEDRBREETHE - WS
BRIER BRI ER MR AER N
Wi R ARETTIT IR IR SR E NN - HHIEST
A dn R BR P ERREE (B AR AL

(i) EMbFBEERMBAGEN DT ERBAN
RAERENMAERNDREBRILEE

REBEPRR AREBLFHEEANATFEF
B-TEREHEBMETHBEEATEZIN
(EERMERMEAARRARE AR )



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a)

b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

vi)  Fair values (Continued)

i) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
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36. UHEEBEEAERBR(E)

a) HBEBREE(E)
vi) AFEE)

i) EBIAZAFEE)

Fair value as at Valuation
AFE technique and key
Fair value input
2017 2016 hierarchy fEEREITREEH
—E—+tF TR AREBR AEE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Financial assets BBEE

Equity investments at fair value AT ER ABE 21,483 16,201 Level 1 Quoted bid price
through profit or loss 2 EHEE on active market
F—H NERTSH®R
BEAE
Contingent consideration receivable FEU S SRR E - - Level 3 Discounted expected

There are no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in both years.

ii)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost, except for those available-for-sale investments (note 19) of which
the fair value cannot be measured reliably, are not materially different from their
fair values as at 30 April 2017 and 2016.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The gearing ratios as at 30 April 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

cash flow

F=H EHRSRNR
REMEFE R —AR=R2 ML EERE -

i) FBRAFEIRZHFEERREZAFE

A EZ R A S SR ARG BR 2 B I T A RREME
(HERR AP SRV 9P RF AL A FE N BE AT SERT B 2 AT 4
HERERIINER _T—+ER_T—<FNA
STHZATETESRKER -

b) EXEREE

AEEERAEAZ BNARBAEEFELE 2N AR
BEREHOB R AR MERFEARRAEG  YESRESR
RIRE AR B ARA -

AEERNBBARXNTRRZBESHE HFEEATR
REITHBOR Tk R A AR -

AEERBEAEALRESREN  AELXDRGAFBHRR
AR ZEERERNRESHE RF—LFR-F
—ANFHNA=tRZAMBLERNT

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

Total borrowings — bank borrowings (HK$'000) wiEE - RITEE(FTET) 30,140 32,076
Total equity (HK$'000) Bz (T 341,794 309,956
Gearing ratio afEtL % 0.09 0.10
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 36. IBEABEREERBEE)
¢) Estimation of fair values o ADFEMSE
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair ATHER ARMEE T TARFEZ EZFERRBRR

values of the following financial instruments.
i) Securities i)

The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for securities held by the Group is the closing bid price at the
end of the reporting period.

i)  Bank borrowings 1)

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the carrying amounts were not materially
different from their fair values as at 30 April 2017 and 2016. The fair value is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

DVETERBERR 2 TSREAE - AR EER
BREFZTEBREDRBEHRZETEAE

RITEER

BAREZEE AREEEN -_T—tFR TN
FOA=ZTHZAFEITBERAEZR - RAFERRKR
enEZRE  WALMBTAZRITHSFRARME
ate

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 37. REBIBIDCHBEEREEME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities recognised at the end of the REERBERRER M BEELABENZREES BN
reporting period are categorised as follows. N
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—XF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Financial Assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: WA EFABSEZGHEE :
— Held for trading: —BIEEERR :

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss RATHEFABRZBHFRE 21,483 16,201
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 48,499 2,452
Loans and receivables: BER K EWFE

— Accounts receivable — EYRIE 4,050 4,050
— Loans and advances to money lending customers —ARERFPER LI 15,664 15,043
— Rental receivables —EREE 350 195
— Interest receivables — EYF S 439 -
— Other receivables — H b FE U BR K 21,429 23,170
— Other refundable deposit —HihaREES 15,550 7,754
— Cash and bank balances —Be RIRTTHEH 36,676 72,389
94,158 122,601
164,140 141,254
Financial Liabilities BKas

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: REBHEK AT EZ MG AE -
— Accruals — FEEHRIE 1,420 1,537
— Accrued staff benefits —EEtE TER 181 1,044
— Other payables — H A FE FRIR 511 281
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE 30,140 32,076

32,252 34,938
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 38.

General information of principal subsidiaries

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are set out below.

Particulars of

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE
FARNEEMBAT ZFHE
TEMBARZ—RER

PRREAREAEE L XE EERBBEYEZIEWBERARZ
FIEHIIIT

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Place of issued and paid up the Company
incorporation share capital/ AATELBRET DL Principal

Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect activities
FE AR 3L K ERITREBZRE

£ E 30 JEMERER B SiE:3 FEXK

VG Investment Assets Holdings Incorporated BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
EERLHEE —REEIETEBRK BEER

Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Securities

R BHERAT e 18T BH

Vongroup Consumer Finance Corporation BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
EBRLBEE —REEIETEBRK BEER

Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each

KBRS —EEEIETEAEK

- 100 Technology & media and
related activities

B R R IARARREE)

Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$6,950,523 ordinary shares Non- - 100 Food & beverage business
voting deferred US$101 (note (i)
HBELEHE, TiEk6950,523F T EILEE BRES
B HEEAZ 191012 7T (MIRE())
b B R S AR & TR (b RIE® ) PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 Financial services businesses
RMB10,000,000 (note (ii) and (iv))
Gl R ARE SRR ES
10,000,000 (P 7 (ii) K (iv))
FERREZRRINER AR EBIEE) PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 Financial services businesses
HK$23,000,000 (notes (ii) & (iii))
H TR A 223,000,000 7T SRR EY
(B REGi) B (i)
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Financial services businesses
BE 100,0007% 7T DRPRT X
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
REBXARAIA B 17T MEED
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
BHEBXARNDA B 17T MEED
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
SLEBR AR BB 17T MEED
Champmark Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
RBEERAF BB 17T MEED
Allex Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

B 18T

[ESS
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BE-Z-—tEMA=t+RHILEE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 38. ANREEMBLARZHE (&)
General information of principal subsidiaries (Continued) FTEMBARZ—RER(E)

Percentage of equity

Particulars of attributable to
Place of issued and paid up the Company
incorporation  share capital/ AAREEREE D Principal
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect activities
AR AL & ERTREZRA
£ HEA B JEMERER HiE SE:3 TEEH
BlackPod Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Technology & Media and
related activities
HE &7 BT R SR 58 LA R ABRRE B

United Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

B2 HR AR 6 &7 LES S

Maxfine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property business

HEHRAF 6 27T LES S

New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

REISEEARAR 6 87T LES S

Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

RBARAF 6 &7 LES S

Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

B BT bIEE 37

House2buy Properties Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Property business

BEXSIWMEBRAR EBRLES,/ —REE1ETLER LES S

BE
Vongroup Life Sciences Corporation BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Investment holding
RBRZES/ —REEBETLEBR REER
BE
Vongroup Financial Holdings Corporation BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Investment holding
HEEZHE,/ —REEI1ETLAER REEZR
aBE

Notes: BdsE -

i) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or vote at general meetings ) ERERZECRHERZARS EELEREAGHANEG LR
and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a winding up (other than the nominal E MR ERERWNEREARAG 2 EMAGEERIEESE
amount paid up or credited as fully paid on such shares, after the sum of US$100,000,000,000,000 has 100,000,000,000,000% STIEE# DR T AR AL BBRIFEAL 54
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the Company in such winding-up). B 15 2 B R ARY AHUE 2 EEERIBRIN) -

i) dbFERE and EEiEIAE are limited liability companies established in the PRC. i) EREBREBREANPEKIZABRAF

iii)  Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Law. i) RBERBEEEIMANEGBERCE -

iv)  dEZJER is indirectly held by the Company through contractual arrangements by the registered owners of v) JdtRIEBDEAEARAEBZMBR R AMER AL A R

the subsidiary. BERB-



39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

A EEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-_Z—tFWA=1THLEE

39. AARMBMR R RIAE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIEAT 21%E - -

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEXNE TN 152 297
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE e 334,410 273,991
Cash and bank balances B MIRITH 480 35,082
335,042 309,370
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and deposits received ERTRE R EWIZS 118 377
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBHE A Al FIE 5,000 16,100
5,118 16,477
Net current assets REBEERE 329,924 292,893
NET ASSETS BEEFE 329,924 292,893

CAPITAL AND RESERVES RAER#E
Share capital B A 7,688 6,754
Reserves & 322,236 286,139
TOTAL EQUITY R 329,924 292,893

The Company’s financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Vong Tat leong David
HEB
Director

EF

ARRZHBRERBEFEN T —LFLA=T—BHAER

REEGLATIIESRERS

Xu Siping
Director

BEF

79



80

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRERMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017

BE-T-

tFEA=+TRHILEFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

39. ADRIBEMRR KRR FHE(E)

Movements in the Company’s reserves RATREBEZES
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
A&
®H L RE
RE & &8 st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAET
At 1 May 2015 R-E—RERA—H 540,586 262 (295,237) 245,611
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRBEEREZABERE - (873) (873)
Issue of shares pursuant to placing of existing shares and 1R & B S8 A A% (0 M REH LD
subscription for new shares BITR 42,096 - - 42,096
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares pursuant 125 A E 18 B & H & REH K
to placing of existing shares and subscription for new BT Z BIER S A
shares (695) - - (695)
At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 REZE-—R"FEA=1tAK
—ZE-RERA—H 581,987 262 (296,110) 286,139
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREEREHEERAE - (1,262) (1,262)
Issue of shares BTN 37,359 - - 37,359
At 30 April 2017 R-Z—+FmMB=+8 619,346 262 (297,372) 322,236
The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2017 available for distribution to the owners of the ARRARZE—LtFONA=+HRERAEHERREAZHRTERN

Company as calculated under the provision of the Companies Law of Cayman Islands are
approximately HK$322,236,000 (2016: approximately HK$286,139,000).

40

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

HK(IFRIC) Int 22

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle®

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contract?

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Classifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Transfers of Investment Property?

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrecognised Losses'

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and 2018, as appropriate

SAEAEDIRTARRREE AZFEELA322,236,0008T(=F

— 7N ¢ #9286,139,00078 7T ) ©

40. EEMENARBE=Z

BETSIRE R

BB B mERED ZER]

BAPBRELANE2R 2 EFT

BARMBWMEEAS

BB EERE

—tFMA=THILFEER
ZABR] HATEAIR R EERE

7 o B30 4R A8 PR TS5 L A (L08R A M 9 4T RGBT

45K BRT

BAFBREEAEI0RLEE

SEHERIE 285 2R
BB RS LR FE155
BEAMBMELENE 152

BAF B RS RERE 165

SE R ERIE405R 2 /ET
BAGHEUETRZE
BEES ﬁﬁw%uﬂfzu uT

FE(ERF RS
RIEE2257

! w=

5]

-
R —
i
HEF
T~

%E

AR

BEZE®

ER]

)

FEREM B HREEN _F—M
Fr=-T— /\EﬁﬂFﬁZ¢
etk
LARR D RERT R 2 AR
it

FEREBI B RELERIER
WIS T EER BB KR
SR F4RRB A 42

BT A

REEHREBENRNEE
hEIRzEEHES
B

REBPEHZ MR
BB REEE1557 K
BEFA Nz 2 H5E

Hee

BAMES R

WS

MAMEREEERETEHE
BE

HNERZ B R FE R (B2

tFE-A-HRZERRZFERRER TRPER
NE-A—RRz&RAR 2 FERARER  TREER
NFE-R—BRZERRZFERRER  TRPER
HEE B IS 2 BB 2 SR ER AR
TtER=E-N\F@EBERAME) - A—BRZRHRZFE



40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to
include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’” measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

» all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrecoverable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

*  with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

* in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

»  the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of
risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

A BEEARAT FHR2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017
BE-Z—tFNA=+THLEE

40. EEMENRAREZE_Z-tFENA=ZTHLFEER

2R - HAEARREZEERE(E)
ERMBREERNLORMBITA]

REZZBAF - ARMZ BBV B RELANEIR I G
BREZ D BN EBZHAE BAMBREEINFOHME RN
ZE-TEF AER AR BRES BRI B R FHER
ZHRE AER-ZBE—=F+—ANA-REDSTEZHR
EeRZF—MFLABRM 2 BEEMBEREERFSR 25—
RIERTIRANE BN Aa) B B 5 B B 2 BB R E M) st B TR (&
BITASIAEBIRATEIEINEME2ERARNERE |G E
R HOERTEREFEHBRER -

BAFBHERAEIRZEBHE

- BREBEIENFERIMBTE  HRARE | HEN
WA BRI EE LR ARBHNAIAFEE -
ARME NEBRaNRSRERBNZEBRAKE &
BRRERBEA/AINAERHMAEEAE 2FE 2EH
BE —RINER 2 REAREREIZBHENATE - AR
BERAORERMHEVBEERBNZEBEARSE
ZEBTA UWREBMISEE 2 & NERTANEE R HE
EZRERAR/INEERHREERASZHE BERA
FEINKENEM2ERANERE 2 T AE - AEEME
BIRERBAREYR ARG BRI ARG RE AT ER
B ltsh RIBFBHM B MELERIF N BREAIEHTAIH
Bl Z#EE REM2ERASRZ2IBRARE(LIFFEER)
DNPEZEBRET HERIBRERAR—RIBEPER -

© BEEARATEFABRGZHMBABRZAEMS TEY
BREENERRTE AUBAEFERBREEMEEZ
BEATEED ZREINEMZERAZY  BRIEREMD
EERAEREEZEERREZHTZEGHERBEANR
BZEEE - AU BABEERRER I AFEEBHER
TEENHEERG BE BEEEGEREN I
ERBAFEFABRGEZHBREATERS 22028
TIRBEA 25

« BMBEREZREMS  BEMBREENFRMRTER
FEHEEBEERER  HENEE S ERERAETRAD
EEEEFERER -BRUEHBREARTERREREA
PREHNEEBERZSEREEBRIEMAR  ARBR
EERBBMGHANRZ B BT 2 BABHFRER
BEEMHRIEREEER

c Bz REFMEHERTREDT B LRERES
=R EIIERS  RET RV BIRELFR R
RERERIEEZRBERME  ZGHEIATE
REFE LERBEAERERTTAZ TAER LA
EREAENEEZFSRAR ZEBR D ZHEF - it
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RS RERE
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40.

41.

42.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

»  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

+  Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
« Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS
15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specially, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recongise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classify cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and present them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for lease that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS
17.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential impact of application of
HKFRS 16, the Directors consider that it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of the adoption of HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The major non-cash transaction is the issue of the Company’s shares as consideration for the
available-for-sale investment as stated in notes 19 and 29.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
Directors on 31 July 2017.

40.
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.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is set out below:

A EEARAT FHR2017
SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
B ERBE

NTOEEREAREBERNAVRFE TR GAZEENUR
BERABZHMESIIMT :

Year ended 30 April
BZWA=1tHILEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —E-RE —E-hE —E—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T FHT FHT
Revenue & 12,767 11,967 13,488 6,774 34,216
Loss before taxation MRt A 18 (4,727) (19,477) (3,563) (24,944) (9,076)
Income tax FriSHi (80) 87 61 (1,691) 475
Loss for the year from continuing operations 34548457 2 RFEEEIE (4,807) (19,390) (3,502) (26,635) (8,601)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued BRI SR 2 NEE R
operation F(&518) - 27,749 (3,161) (7,947) -
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: RNEEZ(EIR),HFTE
FEA -
The owners of the Company RAREBA (4,807) 8,359 (6,663) (34,582) (8,601)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES REEERERE
As at 30 April
MUB=+AH
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF AN —T—hEF —ZT—F —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FT FHT FT
TOTAL ASSETS WwEE 376,260 347,890 340,369 341,539 374,616
TOTAL LIABILITIES FES=Ni (34,466) (37,934) (81,146) (75,651) (74,976)
341,794 309,956 259,223 265,888 299,640
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

L EXTE
Locations Existing use Term of lease
i B REAR HEHR
Investment properties
REME
1. Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, 9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BEETEHS 2 B R F=x A
2. Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BRNEAME 2485 T AR ESEENE E2== T
3. Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BN EAME 218508 AR F7E10EBE E2== T
4. Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BEENBRABE SH8Y T EMmE7EI10ECE *= A
5. Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
B NN T EEFEIEERR T 1E43EDE & E2-08357E L E=s T
6. Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau Residential Medium term
SELPT i BT R R RS IS S BEFT 2518 AR F=E A
7. Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, 58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong Commercial Medium term
B EFEERER8-64RBEAERL2MEARBE [EES T
8. Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BEBNEAWE SHSE B F6E6025F TN F=E  HA
9. Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BB BB E S1H85 8 B/ F 61260455 (1 BE(L = A
10. Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BEENBRAHE SH85 8 BrmF 626375 (I EB(L F=E A
11. Office E, 22/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong Commercial Medium term
BENEBEBEES R R EIS2ELE [EES T
12. BEINT AR [E AT 4 #2335 36065 Commercial Medium term
[EES HE
13. Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong Commercial Medium term
BB NEEIBEHE G EEE S 45768 [HES A
Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost
URASERERERAZHEL B RIEF
1. Office A, 17/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong Commercial Medium term
BN EBIERE BRI REEIS17EAE [EES ]
2. (Car parking space No. P25 on 1/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong ~ Commercial Medium term
BN EBIERE B R R R EIS B EP2SREN [EES ]



£
o
2]
[
S
o
S
o
c
o
>
o
£
=

=
u )
(]
e
o
S
>



	封面
	目錄
	管理層討論與分析
	董事簡介
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務資料概要
	物業列表
	封底



